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The HOME Consortium
Board of Directars Meeting
Thursday, December 11, 2014
515 W. Moreland Blvd. Rm 355
Waukesha, WI 53188
@ 9:00 A.M.

AGENDA
Call to Order
Pledge of Allegiance
Approval of the Minutes from the November 6, 2014 Board Meeting
Public/Staff Comment — Correspondence
WI Partnership Fund Balance Report
Application — Lutheran Social Services of Wisconsin and Upper Michigan, Inc
Application — Crown Court Properties, LTD

Adjournment

All agenda items are potentially actionable

In accordance with the Americans with Disabilities Act, persons requiring any means of
handicap accessibility for this meeting must contact Kristin Silva at 896-3370 (FAX 896-8510)
at least 48 hours prior to meeting.



Minutes of the
HOME Board Meeting
November 6, 2014

Members Present: Christine Howard, Mark Baldwin, Ron Buchanan, Kathleen

Schilling, Glenn Stumpf, Peter Sorce, John Kannard,
Dennis Myers, Duane Paulson, Dick Schultz, Jay Schreurs

Staff Kristin Silva, Lori Rutzinski, and Christina Brockish,
Waukesha County; Debbie Narus, Wisconsin Partnership
for Housing Development

Excused Absence: Joseph Birbaum, Maria Watts, Russell Kutz, Mark Hoefert

Guests: Kim Haines, Waukesha County Corporation Counsel;
RoxAnne Witte and Genevieve Borich, Jefferson County
Economic Development Consortium; Bernie Juno, Hebron
House of Hospitality; Carol Biersacl, Slinger Housing
Authority

L The meeting was called to order by Ron Buchanan, the Board Chair, with a quorum of the Board
present at 9:00 a.m.

1I. The Board Chair led the Pledge of Allegiance.

III.  On amotion by Peter Sorce and seconded by Dennis Myers, the minutes from the October 16,
2014 HOME Board meeting were unanimously approved.

IV.  There were no public comments. Staff comments: Kristin Silva said that HUD will not accept
submission of the final draft of the Consolidated Plan, the Annual Plan or the Analysis of
Impediiments document until the Federal budget for FY2015 has been passed. The documents
will still be ready to submit by the original November 15, 2014 deadline and will be submitted as
soon as HUD allows.

Kuistin visited the Family Promise site that was funded with HOME funds, she said it was a very
successful project and the units are being rented at full capacity.

V. The Wisconsin Partnership Fund Balance report was reviewed; the remaining balance for the rest
of the year is $74,000 for DPA, $86,000 for Purchase/Rehab, and $201,000 for Home Rehab.
Kristin reviewed the program income which has not changed since it is not received every
month. Kristin asked the Board if they would like to see the program income worksheet monthly
or quarterly, the Board requested to see it quarterly.

VI.  Lisa Kratz from Wisconsin Partnership for Housing Development (WPHD) reviewed their

estimated budget for 2015,

On a motion by Mark Baldwin and seconded by Duane Paulson, the Board unanimously
approved the extension of the WPHD contract through 2015.
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Two representatives were present from the homebuyer counseling agencies preferred provider
list. There are currently 5 contracted agencies that are paid $650 per loan closing.

On a motion by Kathleen Schilling and seconded by Peter Sorce, the Board unanimously
approved the extension of the Homebuyer Counseling Agency Preferred Provider List through
2015.

Jim Bouffiou, who is the HOME program inspector from Whiteglove Inspections, contacted
Kristin saying he has no changes to his contract.

On a motion by Dennis Myers and seconded by John Kannard, the Board unanimously approved
the extension of the HOME Inspection contract through 2015.

The 2015 Slate of Officers was discussed, a representative from Jefferson County was needed to
fill the position of the Treasurer. Ron Buchanan volunteered. The Board unanimously approved
the 2015 Slate of Officers.

Bernie Juno from Hebron House of Hospitality answered questions regarding the application
requesting additional funding for the 620 Summit project that was previously apptoved. The
extra costs will be incurred due to the construction during the winter months.

On a motion by Dick Schultz and seconded by Christine Howard, the Board unanimously
approved the additional $29,875.

Kristin stated that the public comments were received for the 2015-2019 Consolidated Plan,
Analysis of Impediments, and Annual Action Plan; the comments were taken into consideration
and addressed in the plans. There was also an executive summary created to address some of the
concerns.

On a motion by Mark Baldwin and seconded by Dennis Myers, the 2015-2019 Consolidated Plan
was unanimously approved.

On a motion by Dennis Myers and seconded by Peter Sorce, the 2015—2019 Analysis of
Impediments was unanimously approved.

On a motion by Kathleen Schilling and seconded by Mark Baldwin, the 2015 Annual Action
Plan was unanimously approved.

On a motion by Dennis Myers and seconded by Peter Sorce, the Board approved the meeting
adjourned at 9:38 a.m.

Respectfully submitted,

Ron Buchanan
Chair, HOME Board



SUMMARY OF FUND BALANCES FOR HOME CONSORTIUM

ESTIMATED
TOTAL FUNDS FUNDS FUNDS
AVAILAELE AVRILABLE AVAILABLE TO
DURING 2014 November, 2014 2014 Year to Date 11/30/14 Comments COMMIT
—= —
Reserved Reserved
Number of Number of
) |loans  Amount Loans Amount
SRR S 3 e 2 e t S
Carryaver from 2013;
Downpayment Assistance Pregram 2013 $ 78,305.40 12 8 7830540(% -
Purchase/Rehab Program 2013 $ 25,000.00 2§ 2500000 |¢% -
Rehab Pregram 2013 $ 25,225,895 28 2522595(% -
Downpayment Assistance Program 2014 $ 300,000.00 4 § 21,088.20 31 § 21930180 | 8 80,688.20
Purchase/Rehab Program 2014 3 175,000.00 18§ 844270 7 % 9843928 (8% 76,560.72
Rehab Prggram 2014 $ 225,000.00 41 $ 11,475.00 3§ 23812458 201.187.55 |3 loans in process
County Allocations
W a County | S 102.915.00 $ 10291500 |8 = |$102.815 remaining to be drawn
CHDO Operating Funds
CHDO Reserve Funds
Movin' Out (Globe Apts., Watertown) $ = 943,500 remaining to be drawn
Family Promise 3 .
Movin' Out (Waterloo} | $ 100,000.00 § 100,000.00 | $ - |$440,000 remaining 10 be drawn
Hebron House | § 29,875.00 $ 29,875.00 $ 2987500 (% - |$162,875 remaining to be drawn
2014 CHDO Reserve alfocation | $ 35,842.75 $ 3584275
CHDQ RESERVE BEALANCE| 3 - S - S 35,842.75
Administrative Funds
Waukesha County Admin 2012 | $ 23,706.44 $ 2370644 | $
Waukesha County Admin 2013 | $ 69,890.20 $ 6989020195 - |$33,325 remaining to be drawn
Waukesha County Admin 2014 | $ 71,000.00 $ 71000008 - |$71,000 remaining to be drawn
WPHD Admin/Technical Assistance 2013 | $ 50,000.00 $ $50,00000($ -
WPHD Admin/Technical Assistance 2014| $ 35,000.00 $ 3500000 |$ -
UNALLOCATED ADMINISTRATIVE | § 63.305.54 $ 53.305.54 b 53,305.54
Other Entitlement Projects
2014 Unallocated Entitlement| $ 231,474,898 S 231,474.98 $ 231,474.98
Prior Year UNALLOCATED ENTITLEMENT| $  131,762.99 S 131.762.99 $ 131,762.99
CHI - Rehab funds heid by Waukesha Co. $ 28,581.24 $ 28,581.24
TOTAL AVAILABLE $ 179188549 | . o |8 839a3e7| |s 45238626
— e — BN LS
7, Total funds available during 2014, mcludes funds carmied over from prior years, 2014 ang pregram Income ived during 2014

2 These are amounts of funds reserved during the month. For downpayment, these means that the banks have reserved the funds for

particular home owners.

3. These are amounts of funds reserved since the deginning of the year. For downpayment, these means that the banks have reserved the funds for particular homa buyers. For the rehab program, it means that applications have been approved and

reserved for particular home owners,

4. These are amounts available after deducting funds reserved during the year.

5 T_hase are amowmts

particular home buyers. For the rehab program, |t means that an appiication has been approved and reserved for




’ Lutheran Social Services 647 W. Virginia Streat, Suite 200
I& of Wiscansin and Upper Michigan, Inc. Mllwal}sz,;/\;vszsingg
December 4, 2014 FAX 414/325-3124

- www.Isswis.org
Kristin Sitva
Waukesha County Community Development Coordinator

SENT VIA EMAIL

RE: Lutheran Soclal Services Home Consortium Application- Hickory Flats Apartments

Dear Kristin:

Thank you for your receipt and consideration of the attached Home Consortium Application related to
the Hickory Flats community In Waukesha. Hickory Flats Is currently under construction at our existing

Hickory Hill Campus.

The Hickory Flats development is all new constructlon, and is permanent housing.
The exlsting community has a total of 20 independent living apartments for persons with developmental

disabilities. The Hickory Fiats addition will increase the avallable independent living unlts to a total of 28
(eight additlonal units through new construction. In addition the new construction will add much
needed community room space and green space to the existing campus.

The processing time from the time the budget and construction estimates were due and the time the
closing occurred was significant; 2012 budget submission with a closing of fuly 31, 2014, This resulted in
higher than budgeted construction costs of nearly $58,000 due ta Increases in labor and material costs.

Additlonal issues arose when construction commenced resulting In additional known and anticipated
costs in excess of $93,000 to date. These costs resulted from:

o Unidentified utllity lines crossing the proposed driveway requiring change in grading and
addition of ADA compliant sidewalks and railings.

» Additional costs for drlveway and gutter
Adding Handicap accessibility to the community room

e Changing to a more energy efficient furnace system

e Additional grading and [andscape costs

®  Winter conditions

In summary, the project budget no longer aligns with the funding that has been secured to date. |
respect that the HOME Consortium may not be able to entirely close the identified gap, and want to
express our sincere appreciation for any consideration that this applicatlon is provided.

—E—
Dennis Hanson™
Executive Director- Housing Servlices

Motivated by the compassion of Christ,
we help people improve the quality of their lives,



HOME CONSORTIUM APPLICATION

APPLICANT

Applicant’s Legal Name: Lutheran Social Services of Wisconsin and Upper Michigan, Inc.
Address: 647 W. Virginia St, Suite 200 Milwaukes, WI 53204

ls the organization a CHDO? No, the organization is not a8 CHDO.

Contact Name: Dennis Hanson Title: Executive Director- Housing Services
Telephone: {414) 304-6934 FAX (414) 325-3124

E-Mail: dhanson@lsswis.org

Federal Identlfication Number: 39-0816846  Date Incorporated: October 2005
PROJECT SCOPE

Project Tltle; LSS Housing, Waukesha Hickory Flats, Inc. (dba Hickory Flats Apartments)
Project Address: 1219 S, Grandview Blvd. Waukesha, WI 53188

County: Waukesha

Funds Requested: $ 151,557

Number of HOME units: 4* Amount of HOME per unit: $37,889.25

*100% of the eight units at the development will be affordable to persons with incomes
meeting HUD defined and required Counfy Median Income (CMI) as required by the
HUD Project Rental Assistance Contract.

Project Typeﬁ New Construction (Rental)

Population to be served: Special Needs and Family (Head of Household needs to have a
qualifying disability).

Describe the general scope of the project:

Lutheran Social Services of Wisconsin and Upper Michigan, Inc. (LSS) received a Capital
Advance award in November of 2011 from the U.S. Department of Housing and Urban
Development (HUD). The Capital Advance was for the purpose of developing Hickory Flats; a
supportive and affordable housing community currently under construction on the existing LSS
Hickory Hill Campus located at 1219 S. Grandview Blvd in Waukesha.

At completion Hickory Flats will provide eight (8) additional fully accessible independent living
units for persons with physical and/or developmental disabilities.

The vision is that while two separate entities and corporations exist for legal purposes, the
existing Hickory Hill and the new Hickory Flats will combine to form an attractive Campus setting
for the residents. The new construction incorporates a Community Room, ample landscaping,
and outdoor green gathering space intended to be available to all campus residents; features
notably lacking at Hickory Hill today.



How does the project fit into the prioritles set forth in the 2010-2014 Consolldated Plan?

The need for low income housing in Waukesha has been well documented. Project support has
besn received from the Waukesha County Executive, the Waukesha Housing Authority, and the
Waukesha Aging and Disabilily Resource Center. The extensive waiting list at our Hickory Hill
location demonstrates the need for low income housing for the targeted populations served by
this development. This project will benefit an often overlooked segment of our society, persons
with disabilities that are in need of quality affordable housing. The resulting impact on
Waukesha and the surrounding area is that qualified individuals, many currently residing in
substandard or overly restrictive housing, will be provided the opportunity to benefit from safe,
sanitary, and quality housing. When combined with the professional management services
provided by LSS we believe the quality of life for the impacted individuals will have a resulting
positive domino effect throughout the Waukesha community.

SITING AND DESIGN

Please submit design information with the application, such as a scaled site plan, and
building elevation and floor plan drawings to document the design characteristics of the
proposed development.

Please see Exhibit 1 for site plan, floor plan, landscape plan and building elevation,

Do you have site control? Yes

Does the project have local zoning approval? Yes

When will the project get underway? The project is currently under construction.

When will it be complieted? Project completion is currently anticipated to be March 1, 2015

Describe the site in terms of its accessibility to social, recreational, educational,
commercial, health facllities and services, and other municipal facilities and services, or
any other advantageous aspects of the site:

The site is located along a significant walking path that is part of the Glacial-Drumlin State Trail
and provides pedestrian access to Fox Run Shopping Center, one of the major shopping
districts, which includes (but is not limited to) businesses that meet the following needs:
¢ Clothing (Kohls Department Store)
Groceries (Sentry Food Store)
Household Needs (Klinke Cleaners, True Value Hardware)
Food (Denny's, Cousins Submarine Sandwiches)
Banking (Chase Bank & ATM)

Describe any adverse conditions this site may face, including any environmental issues,
proximity to existing or proposed freeways, flooding issues, or proximity to odors or
pollution from industrial issues:

There are no known adverse conditions on the site. Phase one environmental was completed
prior to the HUD award of Capital Advance. The site is not in a flood zone, nor is it subject to
any known odors or poliution from industrial issues. The site is not in effective proximity to
existing freeways or known proposed freeways.



Describe some of the deslgn features of the project:

The design of the proposed project will promote the ability of the residents to live as
independently as possible by providing a layout in line with universal design and ADA-
standards. Residents of the development will be provided with fully accessible units that will
accommodate the special needs of physically disabled persons with regard to accessibility,
especially in the bathrooms of each individual unit, which is often the most difficult room to
navigate for those with physically disabilities. Each unit is designed with an “open concept" to
allow the maximum level of flexibility in the use of space, and to provide the most appropriate
level of accessibility possible. This design layout will provide the resident the ability to live in
their units for as long as possible.

The project is being built to incorporate the National Association of Home Builders Bronze Level

Green Building Standard, and will feature an attractive landscape designed by a licensed
landscape architect.

PROJECT TARGETING/ AFFORDABILITY

Please list the pertinent information for each unit type In your project;

Number of Number of [Number of [Maximum
Households Households |Members in |Household
Targeling (Units) Income Targeting (Units) |Household |Income
Elderly < 30% of Area Median Income 8 1]$14,650*
Supportive Housing 8| 130-50% of Area Median Incoms
Family 50-80% of Area Median Income
Proposed HOME > 80% of Area Median Income
None of These
Total 8| [Total 8

*per FY 2014 HUD Income Limits established for Waukesha County, assuming 1 person
household at Extremely Low Income status

Describe the affordability period for the proposed affordable units:

This devetopment will remain affordable for a minimum of 40 years, in compliance with the
requirements of the HUD Section 811 Capital Advance,

LEVERAGE

The total revised and updated development budget is $1,416,077 with requested HOME
funds of $151,557; or 10.7% of the total development budget:

How will the requested funds be returned to the HOME Consortium as program income?

X No return of funds*
X Other, please describe:

*The funds requested herein are to fill project budgetary shortfalls. Due to the nature
of the project as a HUD Subsidized Section 811 project the entity will not generate
funds that could be used to return any allocated funds.



STRENGTH OF APPLICANT

PROJECT BUDGET

Please provide a Capital Budget clearly identifying all sources of funding.
You may use the following budget format or supply your own. For rental
projects, please provide an operating pro forma.

Status Codes: C= Committed R= Requested {also include the relevant date)

Description Codes:

A. Permanent Financing G. State Housing Loans M. CDBG
B. Conventional Loans H. State and Local Grants  N. McKinney Act
C. Federal Tax Credits l. Foundation Grant Q. FHLB AHP Funds
D, State Tax Credits J. Other Grant P. Project Based (Sec. 8)
E. Non-LIHTC Equity K. Other Loan Q. Other HUD
F. Other Subsidies L. Preservation Tax Credit R. FHA
PERMANENT SOURCES:
Status Soft

Desc. |Code / Annual Debt |Debt?
Source of Funds Amount Code |Date Rate (%) [Service (YIN)
HUD Capital Advance | $ 1,135,800 |Q C N/A N/A N
CDGB $ 35,000 |& C N/A N/A N
Owner Equity $ 93,720 |E C N/A N/A N
HOME Funds $ 151,657 R
TOTAL SOURCES $ 1,416,077
USES: INTERIM SOURCES:
Uses of Funding Amount = Constructrqn Loan
Land Acquisition Costs $ 111,300 O Bridge Loan
Construction / Rehab 1,105,630
Soft Costs (inc. reserves) 185,369 O Other:
Developer/Consulling Fees 13778
Developer/Consulting Fees Source Amount Rate (%) .|Fee (%)
Soft Costs (Inc. reserves)
Other
Total Uses $ 1,416,077

Capital Budget related information- The HUD Capital Advance is in the form of a "grant” and
does not need to be repaid. Customary financing costs such as interest rate, debt payment and
financing fees therefore do not apply to this project. The Capital Advance serves as both the
construction and permanent financing for the development.



Please describe below and provide written documentation of commitments from other
funding sources and any other partnerships for this project.

Not applicable

EXPERIENCE / CAPACITY

Please provide your most recent audited financial statements.
Please see Exhibit 2 for the most recent audited financial statement.
Please describe the organization’s housing development experience:

Housing and related services are core components of LSS as evidenced by the fact that
Housing Services is one of five business units that comprise the LSS Continuum of Care.

The LSS Housing Services Business Unit consists of:

e Ownership and Management of 28 HUD subsidized apartment communities serving
older aduits and persons with disabilities;

¢ Ownership and Management of six non-subsidized rental duplexes/townhouses serving
persons with disabilities;

« Co-ownership and Management of Eastridge Estates, a 64 unit market rate independent
living community with on-site service provision;

¢ Contract management of, and Case Management services to, Cornerstone Apartments-
a 43 unit apartment community serving chronically homeless individuals in Waukesha;

» Co-ownership and anticipated service provision at three Section 42 Low Income Housing
Tax Credit (LIHTC) developments (all three are recent WHEDA awards and are currently
under development);

» Provision of site based Service Coordination/Case Management at more than 40 sites
throughout Wisconsin and Upper Michigan. These sltes inciude HUD Section 8, Market
Rate, and Tax Credit developments.

In addition to the above we are currently in the process of acquiring a scattered site HUD
subsidized community in Milwaukee, are currently developing Hickory Flats in Waukesha, and
are anticipating submission of three LIHTC applications in the 2015 funding round.

Please list relevant staff experience/qualifications and provide resumes:

Lutheran Social Services of Wisconsin and Upper Michigan, Inc. (LSS) is the largest non-profit
huran service agency in the Wisconsin and Upper Michigan area. LSS was founded 132 years
ago in 1882 as a home for orphaned children and seniors in Central Wisconsin.,

Today LSS provides over 260 services to those in need in 196 locations in 115 communities
throughout Wisconsin and Upper Michigan, and has earned significant support in the
communities in which it has established a presence, including in Waukesha County, where LSS
has served for 31 years. Although LSS has grown tremendously over the years, its original goal
of improving the quality of the lives of people through a variety of compassionate social services
remains the central mission of the organization, LSS is committed to providing services to
persons with disabilities, persons experiencing addictions, foster children, persons with
behavicral health issues, children, youth, family, and older adults in a caring, dignified and
professional manner.,



The Executive Director of LSS Housing Services, Dennis Hanson, has bsen with LSS in excess
of 20 years- including the past six years in the Housing business unit. Please see Exhibit 3 for

the resume.
Please describe any partnerships for this project:

Partner agencies/entities associated with this project include:

¢ U.S. Department of Housing and Urban Development- Capital Advance and Project
Rental Assistance Conlract.

e LSS Housing, Inc. - Hickory Hills apartments is located on the same campus as the
subject development.

¢ Waukesha County ADRC- determines Family Care eligibility for tenants. See Exhibit 4
for support letter.

s  Community Care and Care Wisconsin- Managed Care Organizations serving Waukesha
County. See Exhibit & for support letters.

e Waukesha County Housing Action Coalition- referrals from member agencies and
support services through member agencies. See Exhibit 6 for member agency support
letter.

» Waukesha Rotary- The Waukesha Rotary was a significant contributor to the original
Hickory Hill community, No definilive role has been identified as of yet, but we are
warking with the Rotary to support additional needs of the development such as project
furnishings.

o St Luke's Lutheran Church- No definitive role has been identified as of yet, but we are
working with the congregation to support additional needs of the development such as
tenant air conditioners.

s  Waukesha County Community Development Block Grant- provided pre-development
funding that allowed us to be successful in our 811 application.

* Waukesha County Housing Authority- provided project support at the time of the
application, see Exhibit 7. It is anticipated that the Housing Authority will serve as a
referral source for the development.

o Waukesha County Executive Dan Vrakas- provided project support at the time of the
application, see Exhibit 8, County Executive Vrakas reiterated support through his
altendance and comments at the ground breaking ceremony for the project.

¢ Former US Senator Herb Kohl- provided project support at the time of the application,
see Exhibit 9,

Will the project create any challenges for the organization? If so, how will these be
overcoma?

The main challenge this project has created is the funding gap that resulted from a Capital
Advance award amount based on 2010 construction costs and a closing that ultimately occurred
in 2014. In addition unanticipated items that surfaced after construction commenced created

unbudgsted (and unfunded) costs.

Positive receipt of this application is one avenue we intend to utilize to overcome the identified
challenge. In addition we continue to work with partners identified above related to funding for
other identified project needs,



RESIDENTIAL RENTAL AND OWNERSHIP PROJECTS

Briefly describe the following:

Activities to bring the project to housing and code standards:

Not applicable- this project is new construction.

improvements (and numbers of units) to make the housing accessible:

Not applicable- this project is new construction.

Ways to assure the long term affordability of the project:

The development was made possible by the award of a HUD Section 811 Capital Advance. In
addition the project was awarded a Project Rental Assistance Contract that provides ongoing
operaticnal funding support. As a result, qualified residents pay 30% of their adjusted gross

income as rent.

RESIDENTIAL RENTAL PROJECTS

Provide the following information about specific units In a RENTAL project:

For rental housing and rental assistance, at least 90 parcent of benefiting families must have
incomes that are no more than 60 percent of the HUD-adjusted median famlly Income for the area.
In rental projects with flve or more assisted units, at least 20 percent of the units must be
occupied by families with Incomes that do not exceed 50 percent of the HUD-ad)usted median.

Number of Income Category | Monthly Unit | includes
Units Rent ) Utilities?
8* Below 30% CMI Varies** Yes

30.1% -- 50% CMI

50.1% -- 60% CMi

60.1% -- 80% CMI

*100% of the 8 project units will be affordable as per HUD guidelines. The number at
each income level shown is an estimate. Utilities are included or covered by an
offsetting utility allowance.

**Individual rent will vary as rent is the equivalent of 30% of the individual's adjusted
gross income. The balance of the total rent, aka the “contract rent’ is paid via the HUD
Project Rental Assistance Contract.

Describe briefly your tenant selection criteria and process.

The prospective residents of the development will be selected in aceordance with HUD Section
811 Supportive Housing for Persons with Disabilities guidelines. The target populations for this
development will be adults with a primary diagnosis of either developmental disability or
physical disability.

Please see Exhibit 10 for a representative sample of what the Tenant Selection Plan will look
like for the development.



Does the project include plans to provide supportive services to residents or links to
approprlate services? If yes, please describe.

Yes, Based on our experience it is anticipated that residents of the development
may require either supportive services or assistance in the following areas:

Life skills training;
Daily living skills;
Personal money management;
Activities of Daily Living (ADLs);
Obtaining and maintaining government provided benefits such as
Supplemental Security Income (SSI);
Participation in social and recreational activities;
s Development of interpersonal skills;
s Mainlaining or developing relationships with family, friends, and other
avenues of informal support within the community;
s Accessing health care services;
Symptom-management and skills to more independently manage the
effects of a disability;
. Assistance in purchasing clothing and home furnishings;
Personal advocacy;
Assistance in obtaining meaningful employment;
Assistance in monitoring medication;
Crisis intervention;
Assistance in selecling alternative housing if needs change (in addition to
assistance in recognizing when a new set of services becomes necessary).

*® & & s & &

It is anticipated that the majority of the prospective residents of the subject
development will have case management services through one of Waukesha
County's Family Care agencies; Community Care and Care Wisconsin. Initial
determination of eligibility for the Family Care pragram will be determined by the
Waukesha County Aging and Disability Resource Center (ADRC).

The assigned Family Care Case Managers will have the overall responsibility for
coordinating the services required for each individual, The site manager for the
development will assist in needs identification and communication with the case
manager when appropriate. In addition fo case management, and in an effart to
ensure stability in day-to-day living issues, general assistance and supsrvision will
be provided at the development by LSS site management.



Independent of site management services, LSS offers several additional service
programs in Waukesha County. The residents of the development will be made
aware of these service options and will be afforded choice in election of services as
well as service provider. LSS services anticipated to be of benefit to the resldents
of the development include:

e  Community Individuallzed Supports- Community Supported Living is a flexible
partnership between any person needing support to live In their own home and an entity
providing individualized assistance individuals or organizations, paid or unpaid).

» Waukesha Clinic- Outpatient mental health and substance abuse services.

¢ Spring City Corner Clubhouse- A work-ordered day-time clubhouse snvironment that
empowers individuals socially and vocationally disabled by mental iliness, to achieve or
retain the confidence and skills nacessary to lead vocationally productive and socially
satisfying lives.

¢ Friendships Unlimited- Friendships Unlimited provides adults experiencing mental
illness with an opportunity to meet others who can relate on common ground for
education, support, growth and socialization.

¢ Mindworks- A memory enhancing program for people experiencing early memory loss.
This program offers physical and mental exercise and helps participants develop helpful
memory sirategies.

ADDITIONAL QUESTIONS FOR ALL PROJECTS

What percent of the housing units in your project are family (not elderly) rental units
affordable to families making less than 50% of the area median income?

None of the units are targeted toward families, all units are targeted to individuals with a
qualifying disability as defined in the Tenant Selection Plan. Families comprised of a head of
household that has a quallfying disability may be eligible.

Are any of the units in your project public housing replacement units through an
agreement with the local Housing Authority?

No, none of the units in this project are public housing replacement units through and
agreement with the local Housing Authority. However, the Waukesha County Housing Authority
has provided support for the project, and is anticipated to generate referrals for the project.

Is your project a mixed use development (example: housing and commercial)?
No, the project Is not a mixed use development,

Will your project incorporate the Star Home Program requirements or another
documented energy savings program that provides guaranteed EPA Energy Star
Certification of the finished housing units?

Yes, the project has committed to achieving, at a minimum, the Bronze level of Green Building
Certification through the National Association of Home Buildets Green Building Program. The
project will feature Energy Star appliances.

What percent of the proposed units are designed to be fully handicap accessible as
defined In Federal and State guidelines?

100% of the units are designed to be fully handicap accessible.
9



Every dollar of HOME funds used must be matched with at least 25 cents from
nonfederal sources, which may inciude donated materials or labor, the value of donated
property, proceeds from bond financing, and other resources. Please describe how your
project will meet the minimum 25% federal match requirement:

As Identified in 24 CFR 92.220 the direct cost of supportive services provided to families
residing in HOME assisted units during the period of affordability may be included as HOME

sligible match.

The identified supportive services include case management, mental health services,
substance abuse treatment and counseling, and job training/counseling.

Total HOME requested funds are $151,779. Total funds x 25% = $37,945 matching
requirement. Over the 40 year life of the project, assuming a minimal 2 hours per week of
service provision, the value of match from general agency donations and solicited funding
apecific to that service provision would exceed §41,600.

NOTE: The following Is only available to Community Housing Development
Organlzations (CHDOs)

CHDO OPERATING

LSS Is not requesting CHDO operating support in this application for funds.

AUTHORIZATION

On behalf of Lutheran Social Services of Wisconsin and Upper Michigan, Inc. (Applicant), |
submit this application for funding to the HOME Consortium. To the best of my
knowledge all information contained herein is accurate and complete as stated.

//‘ C//
-’/é;/ J—(/% ﬁ %,L.«:W#\____ Chief Program Officer

Signature

Ronald A. Hauser December 4, 2014
Print Name ,
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BAKER TILLY

Waker Tilly Virchow Krause, LLP
777 E Wisconsin Ave, 32nd Flooc
Milwaukee, WI53202-5313

el 414 777 5500

fax 414777 5555

bakectilly.com

INDEPENDENT AUDITORS' REPORT

Board of Directors
Lutheran Sacial Sarvices of Wisconsjn and Upper Michigan, Inc. and Related Corporations
Milwaukee, Wisconsin

Report on the Financial Statements

We have audited the accompanying consolidated financial statements of Lutheran Social Services of
Wisconsin and Upper Michigan, Inc. and Relatad Corporations (the "Agency"), which comprise the
consolidated statements of financial position as of December 31, 2013 and 2012, and the related consolidated
statements of activities, functional expenses and cash flows for the years then ended, and the related notes to
the financial statements.

Management's Responsibility for the Financial Statements

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these consoclidated financial statements
in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America; this includes the
design, Implementation, and maintenance of internal conirol relevant to the preparation and falr presentation of
consclidated financial statements that are free from material migstaternent, whether duse to fraud or error.

Auditors’ Responsibility

Our respansibility is to express an opinion on these consolidated financial statements based on our audits. We
conducted our audits in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of
America and the standards applicable 1o financial audits contalned in Government Auditing Standards, Issued
by the Comptroller General of the United States. Those standards require that we plan and perform the audits
to abtain reasonable assurance about whether the consolidated financial statements are free from material
misstatement.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and disclosures in the
consolidated financial statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditors' judgment, including the
assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the consolidated financial statements, whether due to
fraud or error. In making those risk assessments, the auditor considers internal control relevant to the entity's
preparation and fair presentation of the consolidated financial statements in order to design audit procedures
that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the
effectiveness of the entity's internal control. Accordingly, we express no stch opinion. An audit aiso includes
evalualing the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of signilicant accounting
estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the overall presentation of the consclidated financial
statements.

Wa believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate o provide a basis for our
audit opinion,

y ngséeprngerd mon bap ol 1

BAKER TILLY
INTERNATIONAL An Affirmative Action Fyual O ppeciuniry Emplover



Opinion

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material
respacts, the consolidated financial position of the Agency as of December 31, 2013 and 2012, and the
changes in its net assets and iis cash flows for the years then ended in accordance with accounting
principles generally accepted in the United States of America.

Other Matters
Report on Consolidating Information

Our audits were conducted for the purpose of forming an opinion on the consolidated financial statements
as a whole. The consolidating information as identified in the table of contents is presented for purposes
of additional analysis of the consolidated financial statements rather than to present the financial position,
changes In net assets, and cash flows of the individual organizations, and it is not & required part of the
consolidated financial statements. Such information is the responsibility of management and was detived
from and relates directly to the underlying accounting and other records used to prepare the consolidated
financlal statements. The consolidating information has been subjected to the auditing procedures
applied in the audit of the consolidated financial statements and certain additional procedures, including
comparing and reconciling such information directly fo the underlying accounting and other records used
to prepare the consolidated financial statements or to the consolidated financial statements themselves,
and other additional procedures in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United
States of America, In our opinion, the consolidating informatlon is fairly stated in all material respects in
relation to the consolidated financial statements as a whole.

Other Reporting Required by Government Auditing Standards

In accordance with Government Auditing Standards, we have also issued our report dated April 15, 2014
on our consideration of the Agency's internal control over financial reporting and on our tests of its
compliance with certain provisions of laws, regulations, contracts, and grant agreements and other
matters. The purpose of that report is to describe the scope of our testing of internal control over financial
reporting and compllance and the results of that tesling, and not to provide an opinion on internal control
over financlal reporting or on compliance. That report is an integral part of an audit performed in
accordance with Government Auditing Standards in considering the Agency's internal control over
financial reporting and compliance.

bl T Y Vsiehonr Krasies, 0¥

Milwaukee, Wisconsin
April 15, 2014



Lutheran Social Services of Wisconsin
And Upper Michigan, Inc. and Related Corporations

Consolidated Statements of Financial Position
As of December 31, 2013 and 2012

Assets 2013 2012 Liabilities and Net Assets 2013 2012
Current Assets: Current Liabilities:
Cash and Cash Equivalents $ 2,928,507 $ 1,692,257 Current Maturities of Debt $ 683,981 $ 787,089
Inestments 311,728 280,858 Accounts Payable 2,203,573 1,749,841
Accounts and Contributions Receivable, Net 7,266,288 7,664,818 Refundable Advances 2,062,441 2,304,900
Prepaid Expenses 1,013,984 1,575,937 Accrued Liabilities 4,372,810 5,936,105
Assets Held for Sale 3,275,319 4,142,100
Total Current Liabilities 9,322,805 10,777,935
Total Current Assets 14,795,826 15,355,970
Long-Term Debt 17,621,146 19,587,248
Property and Equipment: Other Liabilities 531,348 536,648
Land 3,926,363 4,079,212
Buiidings 36,145,655 37,598,762 Total Liabilities 27,475,299 30,901,831
Equipment 6,070,929 6,496,355
Construction in Progress 27,251 - Net Assets:
Less- Accumuiated Depreciation (23,985,156) (23,625,021) Unrestricted 8,257,221 7,317,981
Temporarity Restricted 27,755,941 25,175,473
Property and Equipment, Net 22,185,042 24,549,308 Pemanently Restricted 3,703,630 3,570,654
Other Assets: Total Net Assets 39,716,792 36,064,108
Beneficial Interest in LSS Foundation, Inc. 27,730,679 25,174,873
Other 2,480,544 1,885,788 Total Liabilities and Net Assets  $ 67,192,091 $ 66,965,939
Total Assets $ 67,192,091 $ 66,965,939

See accompanying notes to consolidated financial statements.



Lutheran Social Services of Wisconsin

and Upper Michigan, Inc. and Related Corporations

Consolidated Statement of Activities
For the Year Ended December 31, 2013

Revenuss, Gains and Other Support:
Government Service
Client Fees, insurance and Contracts
United Way
Bequests and Other Gifts
Miscellaneous Revenues

Net Assets Released from Restrictions
Total Revenues, Gains and Other Support

Expenses:
Program Senvices
General and Administratlve
Fundraising

Total Expenses

Change in Net Assets Before Investment Income and
Change In Beneficlal Interest in LSS Foundation, Inc.

Investment Income, Net

Change in Beneglicial Interest in LSS Foundation, Inc.

Change in Net Assels

Not Assets, Beginning of Year
Net Assets, End of Year

Temporarily Permanently

Unrestrictad Restricted Resiricted Total
$39,080634 $ - $ - $39,080,634
15,103,604 - - 15,103,604
199,385 645,068 844,453
220,626 412,413 - 633,039
1,627,852 - 1,627,852
56,232,101 1,057,481 - 57,289,582
2,854,276 (2,854,276) - -
59,086,377 (1,796,795) - 57,289,582
51,453,354 - - 51,453,354
6,201,977 - - 6,201,977
525,377 - - 625,377
58,180,708 - - 58,180,708
905,669 (1,796,795) - {891,126)
33,571 - - 33,571
- 4,377,263 132,976 4,510,239
939,240 2,680,468 132,976 3,652,684
7,317,981 25,175,473 3,570,654 36,064,108
$ 8,257,221 $27,755941 $3,703,630 $39,716,792

See accompanying notes to consolidated financial statements.



Lutheran Social Services of Wisconsin
and Upper Michigan, Inc. and Related Corporations

Consolidated Statement of Activities
For the Year Ended December 31, 2012

Temporarlly  Permanently
Unrestricted Raslricted Restricted Tolai
Revenues, Gains and Other Support:
Government Service $ 39,919,820 $ $ $ 39,919,820
Cllent Fees, Insurance and Contracts 21,419,857 - 21,419,857
Unlted Way 284,285 656,534 940,819
Bequests and Other Gifts 43,088 155,558 B 198,646
Misoellaneous Revenues 1,621,099 - 1,621,099
63,288,158 812,092 - 64,100,250
Net Assets Released from Restiictions 2,795,190 (2,795,190) - -
Total Revenues, Galns and Other Support 68,083,348 (1,983,098) - 64,100,250
Expenses:
Program Services 58,822,681 - 58,822,681
General and Administrative 7,334,208 - 7,334,203
Fundralsing 783,168 - 783,168
Total Expenses 66,940,052 - 68.940,052
Change In Net Assets Before Invesiment income and
Change in Beneficial Interest In LSS Foundation, Inc. (856,704} (1,883,098) (2,839,802)
Investment Income, Net 26,020 - - 26,020
Change In Beneficial Interest in LSS Foundalion, kc. - 4,435,490 50,812 4,486,302
Change in Net Assets (830,684} 2,452,392 50,812 1,672,520
Net Assets, Beginning of Year 8,148,665 22,723,081 3,619,842 34,391,588
Net Assets, End of Year $ 7317981 $25175473 $3,570,654 § 36,064,108

See accompanying notes to consolidated financial statements.
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Lutheran Social Services of Wisconsin
and Upper Michigan, Inc. and Related Corporations

Consolidated Statement of Functional Expenses
For the Year Ended December 31, 2013

Community and Adoption Permanence, Change and
Individualized Housing and Out of Stability Community  Generat and Total
Support Senices  Home Senices and Wellness Dewelopment Administrative  Fundraising Expenses

Salary Expense $ 5642968 $ 1,587,862 $ 5,002,648 $ 6,947,260 $ 4,609,875 $ 3,230,061 $ 168,912 $ 27,189,586
Payroll Tax and Benefits 1,507,551 384,941 1,277,191 1,626,958 1,196,124 547,755 68,304 6,608,824
Professional Fees 243,585 474,649 165,709 59,781 63,833 769,202 162,820 1,945,579
Supplies 134,990 180,757 126,110 217,856 228,019 51,752 354 939,838
Food 286,410 811 187,761 76,246 360,531 1,890 16 913,665
Telephone 80,884 43,791 115,806 127,584 130,406 258,253 3,071 758,795
Postage 7,573 3,368 18,472 10,257 6,558 26,758 9,804 82,790
Occupancy 918,883 953,149 621,781 889,800 953,165 232,214 43,054 4,612,046
Print and Publications 6,981 5,010 4,620 13,120 3,569 41,716 15,317 90,333
Transportation 374,789 50,463 372,769 644,545 292,054 89,621 17,616 1,841,857
Conferences and

Continuing Education 61,745 48,150 52,336 82,125 42,157 31,728 5,380 323,631
Assistance to Individuals 45,261 2,072 1,581,050 239,503 753,808 5,225 - 2,626,919
Payments to Providers 4,985 - 359,767 5,542,414 387,527 85 - 6,294,778
Equipment 41,718 25,717 62,438 113,146 62,110 420,240 19,457 744,826
Interest 108,232 484,755 120,613 1,028 78,622 374,053 - 1,148,303
Depreciation 246,138 616,418 260,847 4,599 125,726 382,170 - 1,635,898
Bad Debt 78,608 3,030 (2,352) 89,471 3,139 o - 171,896
Miscellaneous (62,886) 153,298 156,247 145,720 108,249 (260,746) 11,262 250,144
Total Functional Expenses $ 9,735,415 $ 4,988241 $ 10,482,813 $16,831,413 § 9405472 $ 6,201,977 $ 525377 $ 58,180,708

See accompanying notes to consolidated financial statements.



Lutheran Social Services of Wisconsin
and Upper Michigan, Inc. and Related Corporatrons

Consolidated Statement of Functional Expenses
For the Year Ended December 31, 2012

Salary Expense

Payroll Tax and Benefits

Professional Fees

Supplies

Food

Telephone

Postage

Occupancy

Print and Publications

Transportation

Conferences and
Continuing Education

Assistance to Individuals

Payments to Providers

Equipment

interest

Depreciation

Bad Debt

Misceilaneous

Total Functional Expenses

Community and Adoption Permanence, Change and
Individualized Housing and Out of Stability Community General and Total
Support Senices Home Senices and Wellness Dewelopment Administrative Fundraising Expenses

$ 9,780,119 § 1,501,997 $§ 58350,339 $§ 7075540 $ 4466230 $§ 4,213,147 $ 364,014 $ 32,751,386
2,043,399 380,924 1,515,276 1,737,068 1,214,530 708,357 128,279 8,627,833
397,002 525,859 242,396 111,539 95,390 322,006 85,615 1,779,807
132,082 151,320 134,862 127,814 191,622 71,481 6,411 815,592
494 656 1,060 185,186 65,646 358,292 1,858 2,037 1,108,735
133,617 66,071 120,097 148,696 124,495 269,384 4,678 868,038
11,777 3,117 27,105 10,823 7,890 49,859 16,820 127,391
1,006,681 838,895 629,004 922,505 916,241 329,954 48,467 4,691,747
6,948 7,249 9,079 18,372 7,185 28,440 40,178 117,421
638,117 38,215 434,247 644,630 278,858 198,723 30,602 2,263,392
85,086 36,372 63,504 38,710 45,224 107,585 18,489 389,970
67,384 2,317 1,421,218 283,281 777,473 266 361 2,552,300
8,510 - 276,626 5,696,902 559,995 - - 6,542,033
68,451 21,301 116,211 78,480 60,193 469,245 24,107 837,988
233,930 478,008 143,112 863 108,647 337,324 - 1,302,884
372,784 620,116 276,296 4,599 142,772 406,229 - 1,822,796
21,901 14,354 20,705 28,018 1,321 - - 86,299
257,027 115,983 124,385 111,308 (192,718) (179,655) 18,110 254,440
$ 16,659,471 $ 4,803,158 $ 11,089,648 $ 17,105,794 § 9,164,610 $ 7,334,203 $ 783,168 $ 66,940,052

See accompanying notes o consolidated financial statements.



Lutheran Social Services of Wisconsin
and Upper Michigan, Inc. and Related Corporations

Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows
For the Years Ended December 31, 2013 and 2012

2013 2012

Cash Fiows from Operating Activities:
Change in Net Assets $ 3652684 & 1,672,520
Adjustments to Reconcile Change in Net Assets to Net Cash Provided
by Operating Activities-

Depreciation 1,635,898 1,822,796
Amortization 69,484 108,792
Net Realized and Unealized investment Gain (24,508) (15,318)
Change in Bensilcial Interest in LSS Foundation, Inc. (2,555,806) (2,632,738)
Bad Debt Expense 171,896 86,299
Gain on Sales of Property and Equipment (703,272) (816,287)
Impairment Loss on Assets Held for Sale . - 431,851
Changs in Assets and Liablilities-
Accounts and Contributions Recelvable, Net 226,634 (257,538)
Prepald Expenses 561,953 (258,207)
Other Assels (8,852) {259,998)
Accounts Payable 453,732 386,102
Accrued Liabilitles, Refundable Advances and Other Liabllities (1,811,054) (2,140,087)
Net Cash Provded by (used for) Operating Activities 1,668,791 (1,871,811)
Cash Flows from Investing Actiutles:
Purchases of Property and Equipment (192,270) (342,745)
Proceeds from Sales of Property and Equipment 2,490,691 2,284,717
Purchases of Investments - (5,828)
Proceeds from Sale of Investments {6,364) 7
Net Cash Provided by Investing Activities 2,292,057 1,936,144
Cash Flows from Financing Activities:
Proceeds from Long-Term Debt 283,339 422,308
Payments on Long-Term Debt {3,007,937) (712,103)
Payments on Lines of Credit, Net E (98,415)
Net Cash Used for Financing Activities (2,724,598) (388,210)
Net Increase In Cash and Cash Equivalents 1,236,250 (323,877)
Cash and Cash Equivalents, Beginning of Year 1,692,257 2,016,134
Cash and Cash Equivalents, End of Year $ 2028507 $ 1,692,257
Suppiemental Cash Flow Data:
Interast Paid $ 1,137,396 $ 1,194,092
Refinanced Debt - $ 6,904,072 § 12,674,502
Other Assets Financed by Mortgages Payable $ 655,388 § -

See accompanying notes to consolidated financial statements,



Lutheran Social Services of Wisconsin
and Upper Michigan, Inc. and Related Corporations

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements
As of and for the Years Ended December 31, 2013 and 2012

(1) Purpose and Activities-

(a) Consolidated Entiiies-

The consolidated financial statements of Lutheran Soclal Services of Wisconsin and Upper Michigan,
[nc. and related corporations {the “Agency”) include the accounts of Lutheran Social Services of
Wisconsin and Upper Michigan, Inc. (*L.8S") and its refated corporations:

Abode Corporation (Dissolved in 2012) LSS Housing, Prairieview, Inc.
Appleton TCG, LLC LSS Housing, South Willow, nc.
LSS Housing, 26" Street, Inc. L.SS Housing, Waukesha Hickory Flats, Inc.
LSS Housing, Center Street, Inc. LSS Housing, Willow Wood, Inc.
LSS Housing, Eau Claire, Inc. LSS Housing, Woodsids, Inc.
LSS Housing, Germantown, Inc. LSS Housing, Woodview, Inc.
LSS Housing, Granville, Inc. LSS Manor, Inc. — Calumet

LSS Housing, Hampton, inc. LSS Manor, Inc. — Chocolay
LSS Housing, Houghton, Inc. LSS Manor, Inc. — Lake Geneva
LSS Housing, Inc. LSS Manor, Inc. — Marquette
LSS Housing, Mill Road, Inc. LSS Manor, Inc. — New Betlin

LSS Housing, North Willow, inc.

LSS, a Wisconsin not-for-profit corporalion exempt from Federal income tax under Section 501(c)(3)
of the Internal Revenue Code, is a multifunctional service agency, organized for the purpose of
providing charitable, educational and religious sesvices. LSS provides family and individual
counssling services; services to developmentally disabled persons with serious and persistent mental
illness and elderly persons; refugee services, foster care, adoption, social impravement and
educatlonal services; care and treatment for adolescents in their own homes and communities, care
ceniers and group homes; halfway houses for recovering chemically dependent persons; outpatient
programs for the treatment and rehabilitation of chemically dependent individuals and those with
psychiatric conditions, triage, case management and claims processing services to behavioral health
clients; and arranges for or provides pastoral care services in various public and community
institutions and organizations.

Appleton TCC, LLC is a limited liability company formed for the purpose of holding building and fand
used to provide services to older adults. Abode Corporation was a Wisconsin not-for-profit
corporation exempt from Federal income tax under Section 501(c)(3) of the Internal Revenue Code.
On November 5, 2012, the assets, liabilities, net assets, obligations and contracts of Abode
Corporation were combined with LSS and Abode Corporation was subsaguently dissolved. LSS
Housing, Waukesha Hickory Flats, Inc. is a Wisconsin non-stock corporation organized in 2012 as a
tax exempt entity under Section 501(c}(3) exclusively for providing housing under U.S. Department of
Housing and Urban Development (*HUD") Section 811 Supportive Housing for Persons with
Disabllities. The other related corporations are either Wisconsin or Michigan not-for-profit
corporations, exempt from Federal Income tax under either Section 501{c}(3) or 501{c){4) of the
Internal Revenue Code, and are service corporations organized for the purpose of providing needful
individuals with housing facilities and services designed to meet their special heeds and to promote
their health, security, happiness and usefuiness. All net assets remaining upon dissolution of any of
these corporations are to be conveyed to an organization created and operatad for similar nonprofit
purposes or to the respective funding source.



Lutheran Social Services of Wisconsin
and Upper Michigan, Inc. and Related Corporations

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements
As of and for the Years Ended December 31, 2013 and 2012

(@)

{b) Non-Consolidated Beneficial Interest-

LSS Foundation, fnc. (the "Foundation”) Is a Wisconsin not-for-profit corporation exempt from Federal
income tax under Section 501(c)(3) of the Internal Revenue Code and operates exclusively to provide
financial support for the benefit of the Agency. The articles of incorporation and bylaws of the
Foundation provide for a majority of directors of the Foundation to be appointed by the Foundation
Board of Directors and a minority of directors to be appointed by LSS, LSS is required to carry its
interest in the Foundation’s net assets as a beneficial interest on the consolidated statements of
financial position. Changes in that beneficial interest are recorded as a change in beneficial interest in
the Foundation on the consolidated statements of activities.

Summary of Significant Accounting Policies-

The following is a summary of the significant accounting policies of the Agency:

(a) Basis of Accounting-

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared on the accrual basis of accounting. All
significant interagency balances and transactions have been eliminated in consolidation. Certain
2012 amounts have been reclassified in order to be consistent with the 2013 presentation. The
reclassifications have no effect on the reported amounts of net assets or change [n net assets.

{b) Bagis of Presentation-

The Agency's net assels, revenues, gains and losses are classified based on the existence or
absence of donor-imposed restrictions. Accordingly, net assets of the Agency and changes
therein are classified and reported as follows:

Unrestricted Net Assets-

Net assets that are not subject to donor-imposed stipulations. Net assels are available for
unrestricted use in the operating, investing and financing activities of the Agency. The
Agency recognizes as unrestricted revenue all donor-restricted contributions made to the
Agency whose restrictions are substantially met in the same year.

Temporarily Restricted Net Assets-

Net assets that are subject to donor-imposed stipulations that will be met by actions of the
Agency and/or the passage of time.

10



Lutheran Social Services of Wisconsin
and Upper Michigan, Inc. and Related Corporations

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements
As of and for the Years Ended December 31, 2013 and 2012

The temporarily restricted net assets consist of the following as of December 31:

2013 2012
Beneficial Interest in the Foundation $ 24,027,049 § 21,604,219
Temporarily restricted portion of United Way
recelvables 645,068 657,976
Charitable remainder annuity trusts
and other donor restricted glfts - 610,688 414,750
Property and Equipment 2,473,136 2,498,528

$ 27,755,941 $ 25,175,473

The temporarily restricted net assets are available for the following purposes as of December

31:
2013 2012

Community and Individualized Support $ 2,616,147 $ 2,484,465
Adoption and Out of Home Senices 159,520 170,964
Permanence, Stabilly and Wellness 51,952 8,675
Change and Community Development 27,199 9,719
Other Donor Restricted Purposes 645,068 667,976
General Senices: ’

Beneficial interest in the Foundation 24,027,049 21,604,219

Property and equipment 229,006 239,455

$ 27,755,941 $ 25,175,473

Conlributions of cash or other assets restricted for the purchase of property and equipment
are reported as restricted support that increase temporarily restricted net assets and are
released from restriclion as depreciation expense Is incurred.

Parmanently Restricted Net Assets-

Net assets subject to donor-imposed stipulations that they be maintained permanently.
Permanently restricted net assets consist of the portion of the Agency's beneficial interest in
the Foundation that is permanently restricted by donors.

{c) Cash and Cash Equivalents and Invesiments-

Cash and cash equivalents are defined as securities and other short-term investments with
maturities at acquisition of approximately three months or less,

Realized and unrealized gains (losses) are reponied as investment income (loss) in the
consolidated statements of activities unless the income or loss is restricted by donor or law.
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Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements
As of and for the Years Ended December 31, 2013 and 2012

Investment income, net of investment fees, for the years ended December 31 consists of:

2013 2012
Net Realized and Untealized Gains $ 24,506 $ 15,316
Interest and Dividends 9,065 10,704
Net Investment Income $ 33,571 $ 26,020

(d} Fair Value of Financial Instrumenits-

The fair value of the Agency's securities and 457 plan assets are based on quoted market prices,
when avallable, or market prices provided by recognized broker dealers. If listed prices or quotes
are not available, fair value is based upon externally developed models that use unobservable
inputs.

The fair value of the Agency’s interest rate swap, used for purposes other than trading, is the
estimated amount that the Agency would recelva, or pay, to sell, or transfer to another entity with
the same credit standing. The interest rate swap valuation was based on unobservable inputs
including expected cash flow, maturity date, notional amount, interest rates, and risks of non-
performance through the duration of the agreement. The agreement was terminated during 2013.

The fair value of the Agency's variable rate debt in 2012 was estimated bassd on current rates for
similar variable rate debt with the same remaining maturities. The Agency also considers its
creditworthiness in determining the fair value of its variable rate debt. To estimate the fair value of
the fixed rate debt, cash tlows are evaluated and then discounted using the appropriate market
rates for the applicable maturities.

The beneficlal Interest in the Foundation is measured at fair value on a recurring basis. The fair
value of the Agency’s baneficial interest is estimated to approximate the fair value of the
Foundation’s net assets.

The Agency also has assets that under certain conditions are subject to measurement at fair
value on a non-tecurting basis. The carrying amounts of assets held for sale are recorded at the
lower of net book value or fair value, less costs to sell.

FFor additional disclosures regarding fair value see Note 7.
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Notes
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As of and for the Years Ended December 31, 2013 and 2012

(e)

(f}

(9)

(h)

Accounts Receivable-

Accounts receivable are funding source obligations, which generally are receivable within 30 days
from the invoice or billing date, and are stated at the invoice amount. The Agency provides an
allowangce for doubtful accounts equal to the estimated uncollectible amounts. The Agency's
estimate is based on historical collection experience and a review of the current status of trade
accounts receivable. When an account Is deemed uncollectible, the account is written off against
the allowance. It is reascnably possible that the Agency's estimate of the allowance for doubtful
accounts will be changed. Contributions mads to the Agency are recorded in the year ihe pledge
Is made. An allowance for uncollectible contributlons receivable Is determined based on
experience,

Assaets Held for Sale-

Assets held for sale represent real estate that management expects to be sold within one year.
Asssts held for sale are recorded at their historical cost net of accumulated depraciation at the
time the asset is classifled as held for sale or net realizable value, whichever is lower,

Property and Equipment-

Property and equipment are stated at cost and are depreciated over the estimated useful lives of
the assets using the straight-line method. All acquisitions of property and equipment, generally in
excess of $5,000, and all expenditures for repairs, maintenance, improvements and betterments
that materially prolong the useful lives of assets are capitalized. The estimated useful lives are as
follows:

Buildings and Improvements 20 to 40 years
Equipment 3to 10 years

Donated propesty and equipment are recorded as increases in unrestricted net assets at their
estimated fair value as of the date received unless restricted by donor.

Leasehold improvements are generally amortized over the shorter of the non-cancelable lease
term or the estimaied useful life. When properties are retired or sold, the related cost and
accumulated depreciation are removed from the accounts, and the gain or loss on disposition is
reflected as miscellaneous revenues. Maintenance and repair costs are charged to expense as
incurred and improvements are capitalized.

Impairment of Assets-

The Agency reviews long-lived assets, including property and equipment, for impairment
whenever events or changes in business circumstances indicate that the carrying amount of an
asset may not be fully recoverable. An impairment loss would be recognized when the estimated
future cash flows from the use of the asset are less than the carrying amount of that asset.

Dus to governmental funding reductions, the Agency decided to close the majority of the Persons
with Disabilities ("PWD") residential group home programs during 2013 and 2012, The Agency
has begun moving to a new delivery model and provides services to PWD clients within their own
homes. In 2013, the Agency sold 16 PWD properties and as of December 31, 2013, 7 PWD
properties are held for sale. In 2012, the Agency sold 16 PWD propertles and as of December 31,
2012, 11 PWD properties were held for sale. The Agency recognized an impairment loss of
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As of and for the Years Ended December 31, 2013 and 2012

(i

{0

(k)

()

approximately $0 and $432,000 during the years ended December 31, 2013 and 2012,
respectively, related to properties held for sale.

Refundable Advances-

Refundable advances are unexpended governmental monies from current and prior year
contracls. These amounts are reported to the respective governmental entities. In certain
instances at the direction of funders, advances will be used to offset governmental sxpenditures
in future periods and will be recognized as revenue when earned. When it is probable amounts
will not be repaid, they are recognized as government services revente.

Government Service, Client Fees, Insurance and Contract Revenue-

Government service, client fees, insurance and contract revenuss are recognized when earned,
which is generally in the period the related expenses are incurred for services performed.
Government grant awards are subject to renewal by the grantor agencies on an annual basis.

Governmental advances received in the current year for future year contracts are recorded as
accrued expenses. Thase funds are recognized as revenus in the year the related expenses are
incurred for the services performed.

Contributions-

Contributions, including contributions receivable, are recognized in the period received.
Conditional promises are not racognized until they become unconditional, that is when the
conditions on which they depend are substantially met. The contributions are reported as sither
temporarily or permanently restricted support if received with donor stipulaticns that limit the use
of the donated assets. When a donor restriction expires, that is, when a stipulated time restriction
ends or purpose restriction is accomplished, temporarily restricted net assets are reclassified as
unrestricted net assets and reported in the consolidated statements of activities as net assels
released from restrictions. In the absence of donor specification that Income and gains on
donated funds are restricted, such income and gains are reported as income of unrestricted net
assets. United Way coniributions are recognized in the period the Agency receives an
unconditional written commitment from the United Way. The consolidated financial statements
reflect the unpaid portion of the commitment as a temporarily restricted net asset.

Contributed Goods and Services-

Contributed goods are recognized in the period raceived at the fair value of the goods received.
Such goods totaled $180,415 and $186,668 for the years ended December 31, 2013 and 2012,
respectively and are included in bequests and other gifts in the statements of activities. In
addition, volunteers contribute personal time to assist the Agency in performing various services.
The fair value of volunteer services Is not recorded by the Agency as a contrlbution and an
expense because specialized expertise is not required to perform the volunteer services.

(m) Derlvatives-

The Agency had an interest rate swap agresment (the “swap™) to manage the interest risk related
to a portion of its long-term debt (see Note 6). The swap was designated and qualified as a cash
flow hedge which was reported at fair value in the consolidated statements of financial position.
Changes in the swap's fair value were reported in interest expsnse. The Agency documented the
hedge effectiveness at the Inception of and during the term of each hedge. It is the Agency’s
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and Upper Michigan, Inc. and Related Corporations

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements
As of and for the Years Ended December 31, 2013 and 2012

()

(@)

policy to execute such contracts with credilworthy counter parties. The Agency’s interest rate risk
management strategy is to stabilize cash flow requirements by maintaining the swap to convert
variable rate debt to a fixed rate. The Agency does not use derivatives for trading or speculative
purposes. The swap was terminated during 2013,

Deferred Fingncing Costs-

Deferred tinancing casts are amortized ovar the lives of the related loans, which is the first reset
date or the maturity date, whichever is earlier, and are reported as other assets on the
consolidated statements of financlal position.

Expense Allocation-

The costs of providing the various programs and other actlvities have besn summarized on a
functional basis in the consolldated statements of activities, Accordingly, certain costs have been
allocated among the programs and supporting services bensfited.

Distributions

The Agency's regulatory agresments with HUD stipulate, among other things, that the Agency will
not make distributions of assets or income to any of its officers or directors.

Use of Estimates-

The preparation of the consolidated financial statements requires management of the Agency to
make estimates and assumptions relating to the reported amount of assets and liabllities and the
disclosure of contingent assets and liabilities at the date of the consolidated financial statements
and the reported amounts of revenues and expenses during the period. Significant items subject
to such estimates and assumptions include the valuation of allowances for receivables, valuation
of the Benaeficlal Interest in the Foundation, carrying value of assets held for sale, refundable
advances, assets and obligations related to employee benefits, and the swap. It is reasonably
possible that the estimates could change within the next year and could materially affect the
amounts reported in the consolidated stalements of financial position and statements of activities.

(3) Restricted Cash-

At December 31, 2013 and 2012, the Agency had restricted cash totaling approximately $1,398,000
and $1,075,000, respectively, mainly related to replacement reserves, repair reserves, tenant secttity
deposits, and residual receipts required by the U.S. Department of Housing and Urban Development
(“HUD™"). HUD regulations require these funds be held in segregated accounts. Restricted cash is
reported as a component of other assets on the consolidated statements of financial position.
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{(4) Accounts and Contributions Receivable-

Accounts and contributions receivable are comprised of the following as of Desember 31:

2013 2012

Gowernmental Senices, Cliient Fees, Insurance and .
Contracts ) $ 6,304,605 $ 6,827,658
United Way 645,068 706,441
Miscellaneous 552,749 422,206
7,502,422 7,956,306
Less- Allowance for Doubtful Accounts (236,134) {201,487)
Accounts and Contributions Receivable, Net $ 7,266,288  $ 7,664,818

Quality Development Corporation-

The Agency is & non-controlling 50% member of Quality Development Corporation ("*QDC"), & non-
stock, nonprofit corporation that provides unsubsidized housing to the elderly. There is no investment
in QDC recorded in the consolidated financial statements as the Agency has no rights to revenues in
excess of expenses or remaining assets upon dissolution. Summarized financial data of QDC as of
and for the years ended December 31 is as follows:

2013 2012
Assets $ 3,393,396 $ 3,427,420
Llabilities 2,085,345 2,180,255
Net Assets $ 1,308,051 $ 1,247,165

2013 2012
Rewenue $ 734,918 $ 748,826
Expenses 674,032 628,654
Increase in Net Assets $ 60,886 $ 120,172
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Lutheran Social Services of Wisconsin
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Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements
As of and for the Years Ended December 31, 2013 and 2012

(6) Long-Term Debt and Lines of Credit-

Long-term debt consists of the following as of December 31:
2013 2012

Note payable to the Mission Investment Fund ("MIF"). Fixed rate
of 4.625% for tive years after which the rate was adjustable. The
first recalculation date was June 1, 2017. Principal and interest
payments were due monthly through May 2037. In 2013 the note
was modified with a fixed rate of 4.0% for five years after which
the rate is adjustable. The first recalculation date is June 1, 2018.
Principal and interest payments of $33,957 are due monthly
through May 1, 2037. The note is guaranteed by the LSS
Foundation. It is collateralized by real estate using a 90% loan-to-
value (LTV). Unamortized issuance costs are $56,491 and
$67,943 as of December 31, 2013 and December 31, 2012,
respectively. $ 5,063,332 $ 7,584,708

Note payable to BMO Harris Bank ("BMQ"). 15 year amortization
at LIBOR + 3%. Principal and interest was due manthly through
September 2015. The note was guaranteed by the Foundation. It
was collateralized by real estate using a 75% LTV and included a
security interest in all business assets, Unamortized Issuance
costs were $115,219 as of December 31, 2012, This note was
refinanced and the remaining unamortized issuance costs were

expensed during 2013.
- 5,043,331

Note payable to First Business Bank {"FBB"). 5 year

amortization at 4.05%. Interest only payments are due through

February 2014. Principal and interest monthly payments of

$38,008 begin March 2014 through August 2018. The note is

guaranteed by the Foundatlon up to $2,355,000. ltls

collateralized by reat estate using a 75% L.TV and includes a

security interest In all business assets. Unamortized Issuance

costs as of Decmeber 31, 2013 were $73,769. 5,100,000 -

Mortgage note payable to Heartland Bank with monthly payments

of $30,080, including Interest at 5.65%, due May 2031 and

secured by the properties of LSS Housing, Inc. and insured by

HUD under Section 223(f) of the National Housing Act.

Unamortized loan issuance costs were $218,003 and $187,457

at December 31, 2013 and 2012, respectively. This note is in the

process of reflnancing. 3,995,043 4,126,230

17



Lutheran Sccial Services of Wisconsin
and Upper Michigan, Inc. and Related Corporations

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements
As of and for the Years Ended December 31, 2013 and 2012

20183

2012

Mortgage notes payable to HUD, 8.375% through 9.25% Interest,

due from May 2022 through November 2032 and secured by
properties of the related housing corporations. These notes

were refinanced during 2013, $

Mortgage note payable to Berkadla Commercial Mortgage with
monthly payments of $6,874, including interest at 4.33%, due
January 1, 2049, secured by a mortgage on the rental property
of LSS Manor, Inc. - Chocolay and insured by HUD under
Section 223(f) of the National Housing Act, Unamortized loan

issuance costs were $111,509 at December 31, 2013, 1,485,400

Mortgage note payable to Berkadia Commaercial Mortgage with
monthly payments of $4,397, including interest at 4.29%, due
January 1, 2034, secured by a mortgage on the rental property
of LSS Manor, Inc. - Calumet and Insured by HUD under Section
223(f) of the National Housing Act. Unamortized loan issuance

costs were $82,600 at December 31, 2013, 707,600

Moartgage note payable to Berkadia Commercial Mortgage with
monthly payments of $2,534, including interest at 4.3%, due
January 1, 2048, secured by a mortgage on the rental property
of LSS Manor, Inc. - Houghton and insured by HUD under
Saction 223(f) of the National Housing Act. Unamortized loan

issuance costs were $76,222 at December 31, 2013. 548,800

Mortgage note payable to HUD, 9.25%, due May 2022 and

secured by property of LSS Houslng, Germantown, Inc. 99,820

Mortgage note payabile to the lllinois Facilities Fund ("IFF"). Fixed
rate of 5.5% for five years after which the rate is adjustable with
interest and principal due monthly through July 1, 2025, The first
recalculation date is July 1, 2015, The note is secured by real
estate, Unamortized loan Issuance costs were $14,615 and

$ 2,132,804

107,322

1,203,542

176,400

20,374,337
(787,089)

$15,895 at December 31, 2013 and 2012, respectively. 1,135,292
Other notes payable 168,840

18,305,127
Less- Current Maturities ' (683,981)
Long-Term Debt $ 17,621,146

$ 19,587,248
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in August 2013, LSS completed a refinancing of the note payable to BMO with a new note payable to
FBB. The new note payable is carrisd under a 5 year amontization at 4.05% interest rate through
August 2018. In addition, LSS entered a revolving credil agreement establishing a credit level of $3.0
million through FBB with a LIBOR + 2.0% to 2.26% interest rate, dependent on the debt service
coverage ratio, with an August 2014 maturity date and guaranteed by the Foundation up to $2.355
million. As of December 2013, the revolving credit had not besn accessed by LSS.

Notes payable through FBB contain varlous financial covenants, including maintenance of financial
ratios for minimum tangible net worth, debt to net worth, current ratio and fixed charges ratio. Al
December 31, 2013 the Agency is in compliance with all covenants.

The Agency requested and received an interest rate reduction on the note payable to MIF in August
2013 through a loan modification arrangement. The new interest rate is 4,0%, a reduction of 0.625%,
which may be adjustable after five years. All other terms and conditions remain in effect with interest
and principal amounts due monthly through May 2037.

In December 2013, the Agency completed a refinancing of certain mortgage notes payable to HUD,
with new mortgage notes payable to Berkadla Commercial Mortgage. The new notes include lower
interest rates and extended malurity terms.

LSS was party to the swap whereby LSS paid a fixed interest rate to the counterparty of 3.32% of the
notional amount of the swap and received a varlable rate from the counterparly based on a muni
swap index. The payments due to and from the counterparty were neited and settled on a monthly
basis. The swap agreement was terminated August 2013 in conjunction with the refinancing. The fair
value of the swap was classified within accrued liabilities at December 31, 2012 on the consolidated
statements of financial position. The change in the fair value of the swap was classified as interest
expense on tha consolidated statements of functional expenses. Payments of approximately
$104,000 and $160,000 were made under the swap during 2013 and 2012, respectively and ars
included in interest axpense. At Dacember 31, 2012, the notional amount hedged was $5,043,331,
the fair value of the swap outstanding was $385,555 and the unrealized gain was $37,543 for year
ended December 31, 2012. During the year ended December 31, 2013 the realized gain on the
tarmination of the swap was $88,850.

The housing corporations have Housing Assistance Payment Contracts or Project Rental Assistance
Contracis with HUD. Under the terms of both contracts, the full faith and credit of the United States is
pledged to assure the payment of project rental and housing assistance payments to the housing
corporations for a period of 5 to 20 years and the housing corporations are required, among other
terms, fo maintain a reserve for funding extraordinary maintenance and repair and replacement of
capital items, and not make any distributions of assets, as defined.
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Following are scheduled principal payments of debt outstanding at December 31, 2013:

Year Ending
December 31, Amount
2014 $ 663,981
2015 766,943
2016 802,026
2017 839,882
2018 4,662,706
Thereafter 10,549,589

$ 18,305,127

(7) Eair Value of Financial [pstruments-

The Agency's investments, assets held for sale, 457 plan assets, beneficial interest in the
Foundation, and interest rate swap are measured and reported at their estimated falr value. Fair
value is the price that would be racsived to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly
iransaction between market participants at the measurement date. In determining fair value, the
Agency uses various valuation methods including the market, income and cost approaches. The
assumptions used in the application of these valuation methods are developed from the perspective
of market participants pricing the asset or liability. Inputs used in the valuation methods can be either
readily observable, market corroborated, or generally unobservabie inputs. Whenever possible the
Agency attempts 1o utllize valuation methods that maximize the use of observable inputs and
minimize the use of unobservable inputs. The following fair value hierarchy ranks the quality and
reliability of the information used to determine fair values based cn the observability of the inputs
usad in the valuation methods. Assets and liabilities measured, reported and/or disclosed at fair value
will be classified and disclosed in one of the following three categories:

Level 1 Quoted markst prices in active markets for identical assets or liabitities.

Level 2 Observable market based inputs or unobservable inputs that are corraborated by market
data.

Level 3 Unobservable inputs that are not corroborated by market data,
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The table below presents the balances of assets and liabilities measured at fair value on a recurring basis
by the level within the hierarchy.

Levei 1 Lews) 2 Lewl 3 Total
December 31, 2013:
Investments:
Caertificates of Deposit $ - $ 3,885 $ - $ 3,885
Fixed Income Funds 173,142 - - 173,142
Equity Funds 134,701 E - 134,701
307,843 3,885 - 311,728
457 Plan Assets - 88,489 - 88,489

Beneficial interest in Foundation - - 27,730,679 27,730,679
Total assets $ 307,843 $ 92,374 $ 27,730,679  $ 28,130,898

December 31, 2012:

Investments:
Certificates of Deposit $ B $ 3,834 $ - $ 3,834
Fixed Income Funds 176,968 - - 176,968
Equity Funds 100,056 - - 100,056
277,024 3,834 - 280,858
457 Plan Assets - 85,014 - 85,014
Beneficial Interest in Foundation - - 25,174,873 25,174,873
Total assets $ 277,024 $ 88,848 $25,174,873  $ 25,540,745
Interest rate swap $ - $ - $ 385555 $ 385,555
Total liabllities $ - $ - $§ 385555 $ 385665

Valuation is the responsibility of LSS’s management, which reports financial results and valuation
changes to the Finance, Investment and Audit Committee on a quarterly basis. The Agency's
Beneficial Interest in the Foundation is based on the net assets of the Foundation. The assets ol the
Foundation consist primarily of investments which are measured and reported at their sstimated fair
market value, The majority of the investments are reported based upon observable market inputs.
The interest rate swap is based upon unobservable inputs that are not corroborated by market data.

The following assumptions were used to estimate the fair value of each class of financial instruments:

Fixed income funds and equity funds are publicly-traded. Cerlificates of deposit are recorded at
historical cost plus accrued interest, which approximates fair value.

457 plan assets are comprised of investments that have observable market based inputs.

The Agency's Beneficial Interest in the Foundation and interest rate swap are based on unobservabie
inputs that are not corroborated by market data.
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The estimated carrying and fair values of the Agency's financial instruments are as follows as of

December 31, 2013 and 2012:

2013 2012
Canying Estimated Carrying Estimated
Value Fair Value Value Fair Value
Financial assets:
Investments $ 311,728 §$ 311,728 $ 280,858 $ 280,858
457 Plan assets $ 88489 $ 88480 $ 85014 $ 85014
Beneficial interest In Foundation $ 27,730,679  $ 27,730,679 $ 25,174,873 $25,174,873
Assets Held for Sale $ 3275319 $ 3275319  $ 4,142,100 $ 4,142,100
Financial liabilities
Interest rate swap $ - $ - $ 385555 $ 385555
Fixed rate long-term debt $ 18,305,127  $ 20,077,599 $ 15,331,006  $ 16,710,174
Variable rate long-term debt $ - $ - $ 5043331 § 5,043,331

Changes in the Level 3 assets and liabilities measured at fair value on a recurring basis are
summarized as follows:

Beneficial Interest Interest
in Foundation Rate Swap
Balances, January 1, 2013 $ 25,174,873 $ (385,555)
Amount included on the consolidated statement of activities 4,510,239 89,950
Payment to BMO to terminate the interest rate swap 295,605
Distributions to 1.8S from the Foundation

(1,954,433) -
$ 27,730,679 $ .

Balances, December 31, 2013
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Benelicial Interest Interest
in Foundation Rate Swap

Balances, January 1, 2012 $ 22,542,135 $ (423,098)
Amount included on the consolidated statement of activities 4,486,302 37,543
Distributions to LSS from the Foundaiion (1,853,564) -
Balances, December 31, 2012 $ 25,174,873 ($385,555)
Net unrealized gains (losses) included in

changes In net assets from assets or

liabilities still held at December 31, 2012 $ - $ 37,543

The unrealized change in value of the Agency's Bensficial Inlerest in the Foundation is recorded on
the consolidated statements of activilies as change in Beneficial Interest in the Foundation. Net
realized and unrealized gains or losses on interest rate swap are recorded as Interest expense on the
consolidated statements of functlonal expenses.

The Agency also has assets that under cerlain conditions are subject to measurement at fair value on
a non-recurring basis. These include assets that are measured at the lower of carrying value or
market, less costs to sell, and had a fair value below carrying vaiue at December 31, 2012. At
December 31, 2013, assets held for sale had no impairment.

Lewal 1 Lewel 2 lewl 3 Total

December 31, 2012:

Assets Held for Sals $ g $ 2,451,092 $ - $ 2,451,002
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(8) Beneticlal Interest in Foundation

(9)

The Agency has an economic interest in the net assels of the Foundation without having control over
the operations of the Foundation. Accordingly, the Agency has recorded a Beneficial Interest in the
Foundation on the consolidaied statements of financial position as of December 31, 2013 and 2012.
The change in the value of Agency's beneficial interest in the Foundation for the years ended
December 31, 2013 and 2012 is reflected on the consolidated statements of activities. Summarized
financial data of the Foundatfon as of and for the years ended December 31, 2013 and 2012 are as
follows: -

2013 2012
Assels $ 30,289,152 $ 27,619,832
Llabilities 458,473 344,959
Net Assets $ 29,830,679 $ 27,274,873
Revenue $ 5,574,045 $ 5,588,758
Expenses 3,018,239 2,956,020
Change in net assets of the Foundation $ 2,555,806 $ 2,632,738

The Agency entered into a promissory note with the Foundation in November 2011 for $2,100,000
with 2.00% interest. Under the agreement, the Agency makes monthly interest only payments
through October 2016 to the Foundation. The agreement terminates in November 2016 with a final
payment including the outstanding principal and unpaid interest. The promissory note is subordinated
to FBB. Tha Bensficial Interest in the Foundation within the Agency's consolidated financial
statements is reflected net of the promissory note.

Retirement Plans-

The Agency has a defined contribution retirement pian which allows employee and employer
contributions. Each Agency employse is eligible to make elective contributlons to the plan. The
Agency makes discretionary matching contributions to the plan based on the elective contribution
made by employess up to 2% of employse total compensation and also makes a discretionary

‘contribution to the plan on behalf of eligible empltoyees, as defined in the plan agreement. All

contributions to the plan are 100% vested and nonforfeitable. Matching contributions are funded on a
biweskly basis and discretionary contributions on an annual basis. Expense under this plan was
approximately $322,000 and $625,000 for the years ended Dacember 31, 2013 and 2012,
respectively.

The Agency has a deferred compensaiion plan that meets the requirements for an eligible deferred
compensation plan under section 457 of the Internal Revenue Code. The Agency makes
contributions to the plan of up to 3% of eligible employees’ compensation, Expense under this plan
was $0 for the years ended December 31, 2013 and 2012.

The Agency also participates in a defined contribution retirement plan for eligible clergy employees.
This plan is administered by the Board of Pensions of the Evangelical Lutheran Church in America.
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Expense under this plan was approximately $29,000 and $57,000 for the years ended December 31,
2013 and 2012, respsctively.

10) HUD Capital Advances-

The Agency pariicipates in the HUD capital advance program for affordable housing facilities. HUD
advances to the Agency are subject to notes which bear no interest and require no repayment of
principal provided that applicable conditions are met, and the housing to which it relates remains
available for low-income elderly or disabled persons in accordance with appropriate regulations. The
Agency has determined all conditions of the HUD capital advances have been met through December
31, 2013. The Agency expects all conditions to be met in the foresesable future. The following are
HUD capital advances outstanding as of December 31, 2013:

el Year in Which
Substantially Conditions Will
Housing Corporation Completed Amount Be Met
LSS Housing, North Willow, Inc. 1992 $ 870,000 2032
LSS Housing, South Willow, Inc. 1992 509,200 2033
LSS Manor, Inc. — New Berlin 1996 2,534,800 2034
LSS Housing, Mill Road, Inc. 1995 515,000 2035
LSS Housing, Woodside, Inc. 1995 746,000 2035
LSS Housing, Woodvew, Inc. 1905 761,200 2035
1SS Housing, Prairieview, Inc. 1997 878,200 2037
LSS Housing, Hampton, Inc. 1998 564,600 2038
LSS Housing, Willow Woad, Inc. 1998 558,200 2038
LSS Manor, Inc. - Marquette 1998 1,507,500 2038
LSS Manor, Inc. — Lake Geneva 1999 2,125,000 2039
LSS Housing, Granville, Inc. 2000 557,300 2040
LSS Housing, 26 Strest, Inc. 2001 602,400 2041
LSS Housing, Center Street, Inc. 2001 491,100 2041
LSS Housing, Eau Clalre, Inc. 2006 624,500 2047
$13,845,000

HUD capital advances are recorded as unrestricted net assets. The net book value of properties
financed by HUD capital advances was $8,895,000 and $9,253,000 at Dacember 31, 2013 and 2012,
respectively,

(11) Self-insurance-

The Agency has a self-insurance program for health coverage of employees. The Agency seli-insures
benefits under lts hiealth plan up to a stop loss of $100,000 per individual, and up to a maximum
liability in the aggregate that fluctuates based on the number of participants. Benefit claims are
accrued as incurred. The Agency has recorded a liability for unpaid claims of approximately $671,000
and $631,000 as of Dacember 31, 2013 and 2012, respectively.

In 2012 the Agency retained exposure under a retrospective rating plan on its previous workers

compensation insurance coverage, Each year the Agency either paid additional premium or received
a rebate of pramium paid based on prior claims experience, up to a predetermined limit. In 2013 the
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Lutheran Social Services of Wisconsin
and Upper Michigan, Inc. and Related Corporations

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements
As of and for the Years Ended December 31, 2013 and 2012

(12)

Agency entered into a guaranteed cost contract in which LSS no longer has exposure to a premium
adjustment reserve. Under this plan, the Agency no longer has a liability at December 31, 2013. At
December 31, 2012, the Agency had a llability of $250,000 associated with the old plan.

In connection with State of Wisconsin unemployment insurance surety guidelines, the Agency held an
insurance policy to meet the State of Wisconsin’s unemployment sursty guidelines at December 31,
2013 and 2012,

Commitments and Contingencies-

Governmental contracts are subject to audit and adjustment by funding agencies. If governmental
revenues are received for expenditures which are subsequently disaliowed, the Agency may be
required to repay the revenues to the funding agency. At December 31, 2013, there are no such
disallowed expenditures that Agency management believes would materially affect its consolidated
financial statements.

The Agency is subject to various legal actions in the normal course of businass. Although litigation is
subject to many uncertainties and the ultimate exposure cannot be ascertained, management does
not believe the final outcome of these actions will have a material adverse effect on the consolidated
financial position or results of operations of the Agency.

The Agency owns 29 HUD-subsidized rental propertles for low-income elderly and disabled tenants.
Rental income from tenants of these properties for the years ended December 31, 2013 and 2012
was approximately $1,118,000 and $1,075,000, respectively. Rental agreements do not extend
heyond one year.

The Agency occupies certain residential and office facillties and has equipment under non-cancelable
leases which expire at various dates through 2020. The rental expense for all leases was
approximately $1,888,000 and $2,014,000 for the years ended December 31, 2013 and 2012,
respectively. Future minimum operating lease commitments outstanding under non-cancelable leases
as of December 31, 2013 are as follows:

Year Amount

2014 1,186,358
2015 1,036,001
2016 822,503
2017 572,484
2018 375,877
Thereafter 603,621

The Agency maintains cash balances in two institutions which exceed the federally insured limit of
$250,000. The Agency has not experienced any losses in such accounts and believes it is not
exposed to any significant cradit risk on cash.
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Lutheran Social Services of Wisconsin
and Upper Michigan, Inc. and Related Corporations

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements
As of and for the Years Ended December 31, 2013 and 2012

(13) Subsequent Events

In 2013, the Agency formed a new entity, LSS Pebble Ridge, LLC for the purpose of investing in a
project to construct and operate a 50 unit low income housing facility in Antigo, Wisconsin. The
Agency is the sole member of this entity. In March 2014, LSS Pebble Ridge, LLC entered a limited
partnership agresment with a developer and an investor to execute the project. LSS has the first right
of refusal for service provision in six units within the facility. LSS Pebble Ridge, LLC's partnership
interest is less than 1% with a total investment of $100. LSS Psbble Ridge, LLC does not have
management control over the partnership. It is management's opinion that LSS Pebble Ridge, LLC
and LSS have limited financial exposura on this projsct based on the limited commitments made to
the partnership. LSS will account for this investment on the cost mathod.

The Agency has evaluated subsequent events through Aprii 15, 2014, which is the date that the
financial statements were approved and available to be issued.
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Lutheran Social Services of Wisconsin
and Upper Michigan, inc. and Related Corporations

Consolidating Statement of Financial Position
As of December 31, 2013

Lutheran Social
Senices of Wisconsin

and Upper Michigan, Appleton Housing
Inc. TCC, LLC Corporations Eliminations Consolidated
Assets:
Current Assets-

Cash and Cash Equivalents $ 2,829,138 $ - $ 99,369 $ - $ 2,928,507
investments 369,422 - 3,488 (61,182} 311,728
Accounts and Contfributions Receivable, Net 8,090,350 - 121,876 (1,015,838) 7,266,288
interagency Receivabie (Payable) (520,163} 520,163 - - -
Prepaid Expenses 1,013,984 E s 1,013,984
Assets Held For Sale 3,275,319 - - 3,275,319
Total Cumrent Assets 15,058,050 520,163 284,733 (1,077,120) 14,795,826
Property and Equipment, Net 7,991,796 1,480,287 12,712,959 22,185,042
Beneficial Interest in LSS Foundation, Inc. 27,730,679 = e 27,730,679
Other 571,354 - 1,909,190 - 2,480,544
Total Assets $ 51,351,879 $2,000,450 $ 14,916,882 $ (1,077,120)  $ 67,192,091
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Lutheran Social Services of Wisconsin
and Upper Michigan, Inc. and Related Corporations

Consolidating Statement of Financial Position
As of December 31, 2013

Lutheran Social

Senvices of Wisconsin

and Upper Michigan, Appleton Housing
Inc. TCC,LLC Corporations Eliminations Consolidated
Liabilities and Net Assets:
Current Liabilites-
Current Maturities of Debt $ 497,829 $ - $ 186,152 $ - $ 683,981
Accounts Payabie 2,201,808 - 573,185 (571,420) 2,203,573
Refundable Advances 2,062,441 - - - 2,062,441
Accrued Liatilities 4,211,506 - 222,486 (61,182} 4,372,810
Total Cur-ent Liabilities 8,073,584 - 981,823 {632,602) 9,322,805
Long-Term Debt 10,969,636 - 6,651,510 . 17,621,146
Other Liabilities 414,538 - 561,330 (444,518) 531,348
Total Liabilities 20,357,756 - 8,194,663 (1,077,120) 27,475,299
Net Assets:
Unrestricted 1,535,002 - 6,722,219 - 8,257 221
Temporarily Restricted 25,755,491 2,000,450 - - 27,755,941
Permanently Restricted 3,703,630 - - - 3,703,630
Total Net Assets 30,994,123 2,000,450 6,722,219 - 39,716,792
Total Liabilities and Net Assets $ 51,351,879 $2,000,450 $ 14,916,882 $ (1,077,120)  $ 67,192,091
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Lutheran Social Services of Wisconsin
and Upper Michigan, Inc. and Related Corporations

Consclidating Statement of Activities
For the Year Ended December 31, 2013

Lutheran Social

Senvices of Wisconsin

and Upper Michigan, Appleton Housing
Inc. TCC,LLC Comorations  Eliminations  Consolidated
Revenues, Gains and Other Support:
Govemment Senvice $ 37,040,160 $ - $ 2,040,474 $ - $ 39,080,634
Client Fees, Insurance and Contracts 14,018,713 81,124 1,062,248 (58,481) 15,103,604
United Way 844,453 - - - 844,453
Bequests and Other Gifts 633,039 - - - 633,039
Miscellaneous Revenues 2,007,292 - 97,804 (477.344) 1,627,852
Total Revenues, Gains and Other Support 54,543,657 81,124 3,200,626 (535,825) 57,289,582
Expenses:
Program Senvices 48,362,047 81,124 3,546,008 (535,825) 51,453,354
General and Administrative 6,201,977 - - - 6,201,977
Fundraising 525,377 * - - 525,377
Total Expenses 55,089,401 81,124 3,546,008 (535,825) 58,180,708
Change in Net Assets Before Investment Income
and Change in Beneficial interestin LSS Foundation, Inc. (545,744) - (345,382) - (891,126)
Investment income, Net 31,565 - 2,006 - 33,571
Change in Beneficial Interestin LSS Foundation, Inc. 4,510,239 - - - 4,510,239
Change in Net Assets 3,896,060 - (343,376) - 3,652,684
Net Assets, Beginning of Year 26,998,063 2,000,450 7,065,595 - 36,064,108
Net Assets, End of Year $ 30,994,123 $2,000450 $ 6,722219 $ - $ 39,716,792
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Dennis J. Hanson

djhanson68@yahoo.com 440 S. Woodland Dr. Whitewater, WI 53190 262-745-1000

Education

Upper Iowa University
2009- Bachelor of Science in Health Services Administration
Graduated Cum Laude

University of Wisconsin Whitewater
1987-1992 Emphasis on Psychology and Criminal Justice

Experience

Lutheran Social Services of Wisconsin and Upper Michigan, Inc.

647, W. Virginia St, Milwaukee, WI 53204

Executive Director- Housing Services/Facility & Asset Munagement

Responsible for the oversight and overall operations of the LSS Housing Services
Business Unit, Agency Wide Facilities Management, and Properties Held for Sale.
Responsible for a total budget of approximately $10,000,000.

Lutheran Social Services of Wisconsin and Upper Michigan, Inc.

647, W. Virginia St. Milwaukee, WI 53204

Director- Housing Services 2008-2013

Responsible for the oversight and overall operations of 28 HUD subsidized housing
communities for elderly and disabled, one marked rate community for seniors, one
section 8 subsidized townhouse, and three market rate duplexes for persons with
disabilities.

Lutheran Social Services of Wisconsin and Upper Michigan, Inc.

N3155 Hwy'H Lake Geneva, WI 53147

Community Services Supervisor 1993 - 2008

Responsibilities included oversight and operations for a Home Health and In Home Care
agency in Walworth County, as well as management of a 16 bed Community Based Residential

Facility.

Brotoloc Health Care Systems
209 Taft St Whitewater, WI 53190



Dennis ] Hanson

Program Manager 1991-1993
Responsibilities included oversight of an eight bed Community Based Residential Facility

Community Activities

Housing Development Partners- A non-profit dedicated to serving low and moderate income
households through development of affordable housing,.

Secretary/Director 2013-present

Quality Development Corporation- A non-profit committed to provision of quality affordable
housing and services for older adults.

Board of Directors- Secretary

2010-present

First English Lutheran Church
401 W Main St. Whitewater, WI 53180
Executive Committee Member, Church Council Secretary 2007-2013

Walworth Lakeland Elks Lodge
627 S, 2nd S¢, Delavan, WI 53115
Past President, current member 1995-present

Wisconsin Elks Association
Publicity Committee Chairman 2002

References

James Tarantino, Owner, Tarantino and Company/Capri Communities
20711 Watertown Road #A Waukesha, WI 53186
262-798-1224

Ted Hakala, Retired Vice President- Lutheran Social Services

hakala.ted@gmail.com
714-353-2733

Margie Kidder, Executive Director, St. Clare Management
1545 S, Layton #524 Milwaukee, WI 53215
414-385-5330



Daniel P. Vrakas Cathy A. Bellovary

County Executive Manager
Waukesha
COUNTY

AGING AND DISABILITY RESOURCE CENTER
OF WAUKESHA COUNTY
A Division of Health and Human Services

June 14, 2011

Dennis Hanson

Lutheran Social Services

647 W. Virginia St., Suite 200
Milwauvkee, W1 53204

Dear Dennis,

We are pleased to send you a letter of support for your proposed 8-unit apartment building
adjacent to Hickory Hills, Waukesha. This site would serve people with develepmental and/or
physical disabilities. The proposed one story accessible buildings with community space will be
very appropriate for the site and the people you expect to serve. Additional low-income quality
units for people with disabilities have been and continue to be important for Waukesha County.

The Aging and Disability Resource Center has a long well established relationship with LSS,
We have always worked together to provide supportive services for pecople with disabilities.
This will be even more critical once Family Care will be capped July 1. We will continue to
work with LSS and other community resources to assure needs are met.

We wish you success as the process moves forward. It is hoped you will be granted permission
to construct these apartments. We thank you for all your agency does for people with disabilities

and their familics.

Sincerely,
L, /f) g
st S LI
Cathy Bellovary, ?},

Manager, ADRC of Waukesha County

Enclosure

Human Services Center
500 Riverview Avenue
Waukesha, Wisconsin 53188
Phone: (262) 548-7848 (866) 677-2372 Fax: (262) 896-8273
www.waukeshacounty.gov/adic



AR (ARE WISCONSIN

Partnering for Independence since 1976

June 19, 2011

Lutheran Social Services
Housing Services
ATTN: Dennis Hanson
2000 W. Bluemound Rd.
Waukesha, Wi 53186

Dear Dennis:

[ am writing in support of your proposal to build an apartment complex for persons with
developmental and physical disabilities. It is our mission to promote independence for
individuals with disabilities and there is a lack of accessible low income housing in the
Waukesha area that our members can access. Due to the lack of available housing many
of our members live in group homes or adult family homes because they are unable to
afford an apartment on their own, Lutheran Social Service’s concept allows individuals
to have their own accessible apartment and maintain their independence. Hickory Hill is
one of our few resources in Waukesha and currently has a waiting list. Another option
would be beneficial to the community.

Lutheran Social Services is a wonderful organization and we value our relationship with
them. I am confident if given the opportunity they would provide another valuable
resource for persons with disabilities in Waukesha.

Sincerely;

Ann Lamberg
Family Care Administrator

Care Wisconsin First, Inc,
Family Care in Waukesha County

N19 W24075 Riverwood Drive, Suite 300, Waukesha, WI 53188 « Fax (262) 523-1880 » Web www.carewisc.org
Phone (262) 523-1600 « (866) 530-2295 + WI Relay 711



Serving the residents of IWisconsin siner: 1977,

COMMUNITY CARE
Familiar places. Caring fuces.

June 17, 2011

Mr. Dennis Hanson
Lutheran Social Services
647 W. Virginia Street
Suite 200

Milwaukee, WI 53204

Dear Mr, Hanson:

Community Care is a Managed Care Organization that provides Family Care, Partnership
and PACE to members residing in Waukesha County. These programs use Medicaid
and/or Medicare funds to provide support for members who are frail elders or adults with
physical and/or developmental disabilities. Because we have members who need
affordable housing, we support your efforts to secure funding from the Department of
Housing and Urban Development to expand Hickory Hill Apartments.

Sincerely,

ot
Edward T, Kohl
Family Care Program Officer

Comniunily Care Ine - Community Care Health Plan ne €355 8 Layton Bivd - Milwaukee, W1 53215 414-385-6600 commilycareine,org
Calomet Kenosha  Miwaukee Outugamic Ozaukee Racine Sheboygan Wahworth Washington Waukesha  Waupocn
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INTEREAITH

SENIOR PROGRAMS

Responding to Community Needs Through Volunteerism

June 14, 2011

Lutheran Social Services
ATTN: Dennis Hanson

647 W. Virginia St, Suite 200
Milwaukee, Wi 53204

Dear Mr. Hanson:

This letter is written in support of the Prospective Development of the Hickory Hili
Campus in Waukesha, Wisconsin, Our agency supporis the need to address additional
housing for supportive services for persons with developmental disabilities, and
enthusiastically endorses the work of Lutheran Social Services of Wisconsin and Upper
Michigan in this area.

Interfaith Senior Programs, Inc. provides services to Waukesha County seniors and
adults with disabilities. We see the unfortunate reality of persons with developmental
disabilities lacking adequate affordable housing and community support systems either
living in shelters, or unable to find any housing. Our goal is to assist Individuals with
basic services such as transportation to healthcare appointments and food pantries, and
connect them with available community resources to remain independent and avoid
homelessness or premalure institutionalization. As a member of the Waukesha County
Housing Action Coalition, we're pleased to see Lutheran Social Services expand
Hickory Hill to provide additional housing and support.

Our agency looks forward to continuing to work with Lutheran Social Services to support
our community's population of individuals in need.

Sincerely,
Kathleen S. Gale

Kathleen S. Gale
Executive Director

‘E';Tdrtlm_ﬁﬁr 210 NW Barstow Street, Suite 101 « Waukesha, W1 $3188
SERVICE Phone (262) 549-3348 » Fax (262) 549-0436 - www.interfaithwaukesha.org




Attachment #1
Development Overview

The Developer is proposing to acquire and renovate the Watertown Square Apartments, an existing
family (40 units) and Waterloo Green {24 units), an existing family development comprised of 64 total
units located at 1500 Lakeside Terrace in Watertown and 620 W. Knowlton St in Waterloo, Wisconsin.

The Project was originally constructed in 1983 and is currently financed through a WHEDA loan
accompanied by Rural Development Rental Assistance (RA)_for 40 {27 at Watertown and 13 at Waterloo)
units, whereby the tenants pay 30 percent of their adjusted gross income (AGI) as rent. The Developer
plans to finance the redevelopment with assistance from the Section 42 Low-Income Housing Tax Credit
(LIHTC} program as well as continuing operation under the existing RA contract. The property’s existing
RA contract covers 40 units. The Developer proposes to set aside All units at 60 percent of the prevailing
Jefferson County Area Median Income {AMI) with the 8 HOME units set aside at 50% AMI or below.

The Developer intends to substantially renovate the subject property with improvements totaling
approximately $2,250,000 in costs or approximately $35,000 per unit. Renovation is projected to
commence in fall of 2015 with a twelve (12} month renovation time period.

The development will consist of the moderate rehabilitation of the twelve {12) buildings using the
Section 42 LIHTC program. The existing development consists of 64 units located in Watertown and
Waterloo, Wisconsin.



HOME CONSORTIUM APPLICATION

APPLICANT

Applicant's Legal Name: _Crown Court Properties, Ltd.
Address: 2233 W. Mequon Road, Mequon Wi 53092

Is the organization a CHDO? [ Yes X No

Contact Name: _Menachem Rapoport Title: _Vice President

Telephone: ( 262 ) 242-7705 FAX( 262 ) _242-7711

E-Mail: mmrapoport@aol.com

Federal Identification Number: 31-1663821 Date Incorporated __ 6 / 8 /1999

PROJECT SCOPE
Project Title: Walerlown Square - Waterloo Gresn

Project Address: 1500 Lakeside Terrace, Watertown W1 53094 / 620 Knowlton St, Waterloo WI 53594

County: _Jefferson
Funds Requested: $ _ 350,000
Number of HOME units: 8 Amount of HOME per unit: $ 43,750

Project Type {Check One): O Home Buyer Assistance (1 New Construction (For Sale)
O New Construction (Rental) OAcquislition/Rehabilitation (For Sale)
KAcquisition/Rehabilitation (Rental) [JRental Rehabilitation ORefinance

{0 Other (describe)

Population to be served (Check all applicable): RFamily OElderly [OSpecial Needs

Describe the general scope of the project:
See altachment #1 - Development Overview

How does the project fit into the priorities set forth in the 2010-2014 Consolidated Plan?

1. A priority of the Plan is to promote development and rehabilitation of affordable rental housing

2. Funds from this request will be used to help acquire and rehabilitate existing affordable subsldized rental housing stock in
Watertown and Waterloo, both in Jefferson County.

3. Forty of the sixty-four units currently provide housing to househalds with incomes less than 50% AMI. The balance of the

units will provide housing to houssholds with incomes 80% AMI or less.



SITING AND DESIGN

Please submit design information with the application, such as a scaled site plan, and

building elevation and floor plan drawings to document the design characteristics of the

proposed development. See allachment f2.

Do you have site control? ® Yes [ No

0 Option OO Accepted Offer 0 Fee Simple (¥ Other: Contract to purchase partnership interests

Does the project have local zoning approval? 3 Yes O No

When will the project get underway? {1 When will it be completed? __ /|

RS ———

Fall 2015 Fall 2016

Describe the site in terms of its accessibliity to social, recreational, educational,
commercial, health facilities and services, and other municipal facilities and services, or

any other advantageous aspects of the site:
Walerlown Square: This existing development is located in an established residential area in lhe southeas! side of Walerlown. Most amenities
such as parks, schools and stores are localed within ona mile. Nearby parks include Clay Park, Washington Park and Memorial Park.
Nearby scheols Include Trinity-St Lukes Lutheran Middle School, Schurz Etementary School and Webster Elementary School.
Nearby grocery stores include Aldi, Pick 'n Save and Luna's Market LLC.
Nearby coffee shops Include Berres Brothers Coffee Roasters Inc., Sonder Martini House & Coffee Bar and Lalle Donatte. Nearby reslauranis include
Biggs Bar & Grill, Pizza Hut and Sake House.

Walertoo Green: This existing develapment is located In an established residentlal area in the southwest slde of Waterloo. Most amenities such

as parks, schools and slores are located wiihin one mile. The closest park Is Firemen Park, The sile is located a short walk from Trek Bicycle Corporatlon.
Nearby schools include St Joseph Schoal, St John's Lutheran School and St John Evangalical Lutheran School.

Nearby stores are BP, Amoco Oil Products Jobber and Ayalas Market,

Nearby restaurants include Subway, Waterloo Diner and Stumble inn.

Describe any adverse conditions this site may face, including any environmental issues,
proximity to existing or proposed freeways, floodlng Issues, or proximity to ocdors or

pollution from industrial issues:

None known.

Describe some of the design features of the project:

Waterloo Green: Improvements consist of one 16-unit and one 8-unit one-story buildings with no efevators buiit in 1983. Windows are original aluminum sliding; exterlor is
parlial masonry and T-111 siding in average

condition. Roofing is original asphait shingles on a shed struclure. The buildings are not sprinklered. There is also an accessory building that houses tools and lawn care
equipment. Parking lols are In need of repairs and resurfacing.

Watertown Square: Improvements consist of ten 4-unit one-story buildings with no elevators built in 1988. Windows are original alumlnum sliding; exlerior is pactial
masonry and T-111 slding In below average condllion.

Roofing is original asphalt shingles on a gabled structure. The buildings are not sprinklered. Parking lots are [n need of repalrs and resurfacing.

Note: The estimated scope of rehab work intended to be completed Is: new roofs and soffilffascia repalr, exterlor siding, exterior doors, parking lot reconstruction and
resurfaclng, windows, common area palnling and flooring, mechaoical system repair or replacemant, unit painting, unit flooring, kilchen and bath cabinetry and fixlures
and countertaps, appliances, Interior doors

2



PROJECT TARGETING/ AFFORDABILITY

Please list the pertinent information for each unit type in your project:

See attachment #3.

Number of Number of [Number of |Maximum
Households Househoids |Members in [Household
Targeting (Units) Income Targeling (Units) [Household [Income
Elderiy < 30% of Area Median Income
Supportive Housing 30-50% of Area Median Income
Family 50-80% of Area Median Income
Proposad HOME > 80% of Area Median Income
None of These
Total 0] |Total 0

Describe the affordability period for the proposed affordable units:

Subject to award of LIMTC, affordability will extend for 30 years for all units.

LEVERAGE

Describe the percentage of requested HOME Consortium funds to the project’s total
funding: 5.9% - HOME Requested = $350,000

Total Development Cost = $5.9 million

How will the requested funds be returned to the HOME Consortium as program income?

More than 50% returned within § years of award
More than 50% returned within 15 years of award
Less than 100% returned within 16 years of award

Residual receipts after expenses

]
]
[x]
l:l Balloon payment at or after 15 years of award
-
]

No return of funds

U

Other, please describe:

Applicant requests a 30 year term, 2.0% loan, payable from avallable cash flow



STRENGTH OF APPLICANT

PROJECT BUDGET See atiachment #4 Sources & Uses

Please provide a Capital Budget clearly identifying all sources of funding. You
may use the following budget format or supply your own. For rental projects,
please provide an operating pro forma.

Status Codes: C= Committed R= Requested (also include the relevant date)

Description Codes:

A. Permanent Financing G. State Housing Loans M. CDBG
B. Conventional Loans H. State and Local Grants  N. McKinney Act
C. Federal Tax Credits I. Foundation Grant O. FHLB AHP Funds
D. State Tax Credits J. Other Grant P. Project Based (Sec. 8)
E. Non-LIHTC Equity K. Other Loan Q. Other HUD
F. Other Subsidies L. Preservation Tax Credit R.FHA
PERMANENT SOURCES:
Status Soft

Desc. |Code !/ Annual Debt |Debt?
Source of Funds Amount Code |Date Rate (%) |Service (YIN)
HOME Funds
TOTAL SOURCES $ -
USES: INTERIM SOURCES:
Uses of Funding Amount O Gonstruction Loan
Acquisition Cosls O Bridge Loan
Construction / Rehab .
Contingency 0 Other:

Financing Costs
Developer/Consulting Fees
Soft Costs (inc. reserves)
Other

Total Uses $ -

Source Amount Rate (%) |Fee (%)

Please describe below and provide written documentation of commitments from other
funding sources and any other partnerships for this project.

The project will ba applying for an allocation of LIHTC from the WI Housing and Economic Development Authority

in late January 2015.
Attached is a conditional cornmitment for foan funds from Lancaster Pollard (Attachment #5).



EXPERIENCE / CAPACITY

Please provide your most recent audited financial statements. See attachment #6.

Please describe the organization's housing development experience:

See developer overview - attachment #7.

Please list relevant staff experience/qualifications and provide resumes:

See allached developer overview (attachmenlt #7) and board members description (attachment #8).

Please describe any partnerships for this project:

A Wisconsin Limited Parinership will be formed with Crown Court Praperties as the sole member of the General Partner enlily and a tax
credlt investor as the Limited Pariner.

Historically, Crown Court Properlles tax credil developments include a number of devalopment team parficipants, Including

Baker Tilly of Madison, Wt as accountants and consultants, Stier Construction of Waukesha, Wi as general contraclor, ACC
Management of Oshkosh, W] as our properly management company, and Benz Architecture of Verona, Wl as our project architect.
Recently we have also begun to pariner with Lutheran Soclal Services of Wisconsin and Upper Michlgan to provide linkages fo supperiive
sarvices for residents.

Will the project create any challenges for the organization? If so, how will these be
overcome?

Crown Courl Propertles has executed simllar acquisilion rahab projects for tow-income housling In the past. Currently we have ten
in Wisconsin and one In lliinois, so we are very familiar with the process and do not anlicipale any unusual challenges.

RESIDENTIAL RENTAL AND OWNERSHIP PROJECTS
5




Briefly describe the following:

Activities to bring the project to housing and code standards:
Walertown - with he presence of gas fired equipmen, install required CO detectors. Accessibilily codes discussed below.

Walerloo - revise the faundry areas to meaet code. When the paving is sealed, reslripe according to code and install appropriale handicap code
signage. Although they are currently compliant, the patio and deck railings are in poor condition and should be repaired to currenl code slandards.
Installation of required CO detectors is raquired, as with Watertown.

Improvements (and numbers of units) to make the housing accessible:

Watertown and Waterloo - For code compllance wilh accessibilily codes, two units at each sile must be compietely renovated (o be in 100% compliance.
Common area and site would require minor adjustments, ramps and a limited number of curb cuts. When the parking lot is reconstructed, appropriate
painting of lines and signage should be inslalled per code.

Ways to assure the long term affordability of the project:

The successful recapilalization of the properties using Rural Development financing, tax credit equily and HOME Funding to acquire and
substantially rehabilitale the project addressing all long-term capilal needs to keep these projects in the Rural Development affordable program
will agsure that the current tenanls and communily will continue lo have this valuable housing resource available fo them for the long term.

RESIDENTIAL RENTAL PROJECTS

Provide the following information about specific units in a RENTAL project:

For rental housing and rental assistance, at least 90 percent of benefiting families must have
incomes that are no more than 60 percent of the HUD-adjusted median family income for the area.
In rental projects with five or more assisted units, at least 20 percent of the units must be
occupied by families with incomes that do not exceed 50 percent of the HUD-adjusted median.

Rental Project

Number of Income Category | Monthly Unit Includes Amount of
Units Rent Utilities? HOME Per Unit
Below 30% CMI - _
8" 30.1% -- 50% CMI | $550 1BR/$620 2Bk No $43,750
- 50.1% -- 60% CMI
60.1% -- 80% CMI

* Four 1BR Unils in Waterloo Green and Four 2BR unlts In Walerlown Square. Note: all 8 unils receive a rent subsidy from Rural Developmeni,
Describe briefly your tenant selection criteria and process.

Ses Allachment #9 - Tenant Selection Crileria fromy ACC Management, in accordance with Rural Development requirements.

Does the project include plans to provide supportive services to residents or links to
appropriate services? If yes, please describe.

Woa intend to communicate with lacal supportive service agencies and continue o be in contact with LSS, an experiencad service provider
to assisl with linking resldents to services. Please see the attached letter of support from Lutheran Social Services.
{Allachmenl #10)

ADDITIONAL QUESTIONS FOR ALL PROJECTS




What percent of the housing units in your project are family (not elderly) rental units
affordable to families making less than 60% of the area median income?

All of the units In the project are family units. 62.5% or 40 units of the 84 unlts are affordable to famllies making less than 50% AMI. White
they are not reslricted as such, due to the RA an these unils, they are afforctable to families in this Income brackel. 8 of these units will
be dasignated as HOME unils and targeted ta 50% AMI or less.

Are any of the units in your project public housing replacement units through an
agreement with the local Housing Authority?

No

Is your project a mixed use development (example: housing and commercial)?

No

Wil your project incorporate the Star Home Program requirements or another
documented energy savings program that provides guaranteed EPA Energy Star
Certification of the finished housing units?

This project will achieve the highesl scoring energy standard in WHEDA's LIMTC scoring critaria by commilting to ovar 150 points under the
Wisconsin Green Built Homes Program. All appliances and systems must meel EPA Energy Star ratings. {www.greenbuilthome.org/greenbuiithome)

What percent of the proposed units are designed to be fully handicap accessible as
defined in Federal and State guidelines?
At bolh sites, after construction there will be 5% of the units as fully handicap accessible.

Every dollar of HOME funds used must be matched with at least 25 cents from nonfederal
sources, which may include donated materials or labor, the value of donated property,
proceeds from bond financing, and other resources. Please describe how your project
will meet the minimum 25% federal match requirement:

Per HOME Fund guidelines, the matching funds requirement can be met by a discounted sale price of the property. 26% of $350,000 Is $87,500.

The match will be achleved with a differential balween the anticipated sale price of $1,139,708 (assumad Rural Development permanent debt)
and a conservalive appraised value in excess of $1.3 million.

NOTE: The following is only available to Community Housing Development Organizations
{CHDOs)

CHDO OPERATING




On the table below, break down the administrative/operational expenses you will incur in
the course of initiating, operating, managing and monitoring proposed activities. For
each item marked with an asterisk provide more detail on additional pages.

CATEGORY
Personnel
Travel
Equipment*
Office Rent
Utilities
Supplies
Training
Audit (required)
Contractual*
Other*
TOTALS

HOME

OTHER SOURCES TOTAL

AUTHORIZATION

On behalf of Crown Courl Preperties, Lid.

(Applicant), | submit

this application for funding to the HOME Consortium. To the best of my knowledge all
information contained herein is accurate and complete as stated.

. P e 3
Jlt S

Vice President

Signature Title
Menachem Rapoport 1213114
Print Name Date



Attachment #2 - Site Plans and Photos

Waterloo Green
WATERLOO, Wi

PROPERTY PHOTOS
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‘Waterloo Green s 05
WATERLOO, WI PROPERTY DESCRIPTION

AERIAL PHOTO
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Waterloo Green

ATERLOO, W PROPERTY DESCRIPTION

SITE PLAN
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Watertown Square
WATERTOWN, Wi

PROPERTY DESCRIPTION
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PROPERTY PHOTOS
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Watertown Square - _ PEiE
WATERTOWN, Wi - _ 'PROPERTY DESCRIPTION
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Watertown Square
WATERTOWN, W RIPTION

SITE PLAN
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Capital Needs Assessment !__J_SD__A .iﬂ
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Typical building, rear elevation,

Typical Entry, not fron: entrance door, trim and wood siding, as well as the! !Typiai trash endlosure
reof that needs repicement.

Photos 10f1 CNA Worksheet Version 1.5



Altachment #3 - Targeting

‘Watertown Sg & Waterloo Green
HOME
Project Targeting and Affordabitity
Maximum
Number of Units Number of |Household |Househoid

Targetina Income Targeting _[Units _|members income
Elet < 30% Cwmil

' Supportive [3050 % Cmi 8

Familv 56 50-80% CMiI 56

|Propesed HOME 8 >80% CMI

Total 64 Total 64

Note!

40 of the £4 tota| Units recelve rental assistance from Rural Development, These householids are typically 50% AML or under.
-8 units which will be designated HOPME units will be fimited to 50% AMI or under
-All other units will reflect 60% AM|! under LIHTC affordabillty



Watertown 54 & Waterloe Green

Attachment #4 - Sources & Uses

STATEMENT OF FORECASTED SOURCES AND USES

SOURCES OF FUNDS Construction| Post Construction| Permanent
First Nlontgage- New 536 s . s 980,000 S 880,000
Construction Period Cash Flow 69918 - 69,918
|Assumed RD Mortgages 1,139,708 1.139,708
GP Equity = . 100
LIHTC Equity 647,971 2,591,885 3.239.356
Deferrad Dev Fee - 101,045 101,085
Construction Loan - Lender TBD 3,236,664 (3.235,854) -
HOME Loan, Casiiow 350,000 - 250,000
{Existing Roserves _ . - 57.785
Toml Soufces Of Funds 3 sesseTls LWL |5 ST
Py Totxl
USES OF FUNDS Construction| Cengtruction: Permanen
Acquisition & Sito Costs
Land Costs 113,871 - 113,971
Buliding Acquisition 1.025.737 - 1.025,737
Acquisition fee/Broketage 58.985 . 6,985
Escrow/Reserves . - -
Special Assessments - - -
Acguisition: legal oxpense - - -
Acquisition: Title/Closing . - -
Property taxes - - =
Operating Loss . - -
On-Site improvements - ] ¥
Ofi-Sita Improvements - - -
Landscaping - . =
Asphatt paving . - .
|Construction Costs
Residential Construction 2,309,120 o] 2.309,120
Personal property 65,206 . ©65.295
Gereral Requirements 138,547 - 138,547
Contractor Overhead 48,182 ] 4€.182
Contractor Profit 138,547 - 128,547
Construction Contingency 269,769 - 269,758
Ei & RE Attomey
Architect & Engineer 75,000 - 75,000
Reaf estate attorney 60,000 - BD,000
Survey 10,000 - 10,0600
Construction Interest & Fees
Insurance: Buliders Risk - - -
Insurance: Owner's Liabity - - -
Interest during construction an.000 13,000 63,000
RE Tax During Constr - - -
“Title and recording 20.000 - 20,000
Canstruction Loan Fees - - B
|Permanent Financing
HUD Fees - - -
Perm Lender Foe 15,000 . 15,000
Soft Costs
Property Appraisal 10,000 - 40.000
Market sludy B.O00 - 2,000
Emvirenmentat £.000 - 6.000
Tax Credt Foes 38.820 - 33,820
Relocation 224,000 - 224,000
Rent - Up 15,000 - 15,000
Capital Noeds Assessment 10,000 . 16,000
Cost Certification & Ascounting 11,000 - 11,000
Syndication Costs
Organization (pactnership) 15,000 - 15,000
Syndlcation Expense 10,000 - 10,000
Develeper Foos | Reserves
Developer fe0 and svorheas 234.300 501,200 716.000
| Other: Consultants 60,000 - 60,000
Reptacement Resarve-Existing 57.785 . 57,785
Operating & Dett Reserve - - 254,851
_Rent Reserve for Exlstigg Tenants 75.000 75.000
[Total Uses Of Funds [=__comsi[s SE8Z00 3 saaeanz

PRELIMINARY DRAFT- FOR DISCUSSION PURPOSES ONLY



Watertown Sq & Waterloo Groen

FORECAST OF NET CASH FLOW FROM OPERATIONS

PAGE &
1 2 E] & 3 & 7 -] 2 w0 m iz kb 4 kH
2016 207 2018 My 2020 2021 2022 w023 2024 20285 2026 2027 s 2025 2030 TOTAL

Income

Romal Income 445052 5 483330 5 472600 $ 482052 5 491683 3 S01.526 $ 511557 5 521788 $ 532224 5 542868 $ 553726 5 584800 § S76098 § SITHIE 5 599371 $ 7.840.344

Other Income 2628 258 2735 2.78% 2845 2.802 2,560 3,019 3,080 3141 3204 3258 3333 3400 3.488 45455

Vacancy % - £51.340) p2E) (227 (33.938) @4518) 35,310, 30,4 f 2,
Effectlve Gross In¢ome - 418,380 =30 242051 £50 902 459820 450,110
Expenses

Operaling Expensos 248,638 258,095 28,778 271,691 279,342 288.238 206,885 305,701 314,965 324,414 334,945 344 170 354,496 365,131 376,085 4,624,384

Management Foe 31,088 32386 33013 33,573 34347 35038 35734 38,449 3778 rez 38.680 39,454 40,243 41,043 41,868 548,103

Reserve for Replacoment 0% 1RW 19200 19200 19200 19200 19200 18200 18200 19.200 18200 18200 19200 18200 19200 9200 258,000
Total Operating Expenzes a2 307,681 s 324 564 = ] I S 374D 381,535 IV2OS 02526 213,838 425378 437,153 5,460 457
Net Operating Income 117,449 125,731 126.070 128,238 128,521 126,647 126,687 126,830 126,483 126,253 125,819 125480 124,831 124,263 123.487 1,878,905
Source for Construction 50% - - - - . - - - - - - - - - - -
Developer Resorve - - = - - - - - - - - - - . - .
Cash Flow 117449 125,731 126,010 126,338 126,531 126,847 128,681 128,630 128,489 126253 125,819 125,480 124,331 124,268 123,487 1,878,805
Debt Service

Debt Service - 15t mongage - 80,655 60,855 80,855 80,855 60,855 50,855 60,655 80,855 60,555 60,655 60,655 60,855 60,855 80,665 649,164

Debt Services « RD Assumed Morpages-2nd 44,531 44,531 44,531 44,531 44 531 44521 44531 44,531 44,531 44,531 44,537 44531 44,531 44,531 44501 667.965

Corstruction Loen (nterest - - - - - - - - - - - - - & -
Tola! Dobt Sorvier 4450 105,186 105188 105,168 105,786 108,186 105308 105,386 105,188 105,188 RECRT 10588 105,288 105,188 105,188 1577
DSCR- st - 120 120 1.2¢ 1.20 120 120 120 1.20 120 120 119 118 1.8 117
Cash Flow Used for Constriction 69.918 - - - - - - - a - - = - - 68,918
LP Asset Management Fee % 3.000 3.090 3.3 3278 337 JATE J.582 3580 500 3914 £032 4053 42T 4405 4.538 55,797
Cash Flow - 17,456 17,702 17874 17,969 17883 17914 17755 17,503 17,153 18,702 16,141 15,458 14878 13,763 236,082
Deferred Developer Fee

Paymant 101,045 - 17,456 17,702 17,874 17.960 17.983 12,082 - - - - = - - - 101,045
GP ~—RD Limited Dividend - - - - . 5.852 7.304 T304 7.304 7.304 7304 7.304 T304 T304 84,284
Cash Flow - - - - - - - 10.451 10,190 9,849 8,398 8.837 8.164 1374 6459 70,733
HOME Loan, Cashflow

Payment.Lig to Cashilow - - - - - = - - 10,451 10,199 9.849 9,398 8837 B 7.374 6450 70733

Curreni Batance 350,000 350,000 350,000 350,000 350,000 357,000 364,140 380,972 357,992 395.302 353,010 5123 350.084 348,721 350,256
Intererst Payments walved first 5 years

Cash Flow After HOME Loan

PRELIMINARY DRAFT- FOR DISCUSSION PURPOSES ONLY

12032014



g L LANCASTLR Bl
POLLARD Ml

MORTGAGE COMPANY

December 2, 2014

Watertown and Waterloo W1 Redevelopment Project
¢/o Menachem Rapoport

Vice President

Crown Court Properties, Ltd.

2233 W, Mequon Road

Mequon WI 53092

Re:  USDA RD Guaranteed Financing
Jefferson County, Wisconsin

Dear Mr. Rapoport:

It is our pleasure, on behalf of Lancaster Pollard Mortgage Company (“LPMC"), to provide
this outline of the financing arrangement we are proposing for Watertown Square and
Waterloo Green Apartments, two existing apartments projects consisting of 64 units
(“Development”) located in Jefferson, Wisconsin.

Lancaster Pollard Mortgage Company has conducted preliminary “due diligence” on the
proposed project, including mortgage sizing analysis using USDA loan underwriting
criteria. LPMC will issue a USDA RD 538 Guaranteed fixed rate loan to the below-
referenced Borrower as permanent financing for the Property.

The following terms outline LPMC’s Conditional Commitment to the Borrower and does not
represent a commitment to lend.

BORROWER: Watertown and Waterloo WI Redevelopment Project, LP (to be
formed “Borrower”)

GENERAL

PARTNER: Watertown and Waterloo WI Redevelopment Project, LL.C (to be

formed)
LOAN AMOUNT: Up to $1,110,000.00
TERM: Up to forty years or 480 month Permanent Period
AMORTIZATION:  Interest and Principal for forty years or 480 months

RATE: A fixed interest rate currently estimated at 5.50%, including
Guarantee Fee, locked at construction close.

LENDER: LPMC
65 Casl State St 16th Floor » Columbus, OH 43215 » Phone (614) 224-8800 « Fax (614) 224-8805

‘wivw.fancasterpollard.com | Atlunta » Ausiin fes + Philadelphia - =




PURPOSE:

SECURITY:

PREREQUISITES
FOR LOAN:

FEES:

OTHER GENERAL
CONDITIONS:

The loan funds will be used as a permanent take out to assist in the
acquisition and rehabilitation of the Development on the Property.

1st and best lien position on the Development and Property.

LPMC shall require the following prior to issuing a firm commitment
to provide funding:

» A Firm Commitment for mortgage insurance by the U.S.
Department of Agriculture, Rural Development pursuant to
Section 538 of the National Housing Act in an amount not less than
the Loan;

* Market interest rates at the time of loan pricing;

e AFirm Commitment from Equity Provider(s);

e A Firm Commitment from HOME in and amount not less than
$350,000.00;

e Draft of Limited Partnership Agreement; and

» Any additional information required by LPMC.

Estimated of all fees for securing the loan with RD 538 Guarantee is
the greater of: two hundred (200) basis points of the Loan Amount, or
thirty five thousand dollars ($35,000) paid at the closing of the loan, A
guarantee fee of nine tenths percent (0.90%) of the loan amount will
be due at closing, Additionally, Borrower will pay Lender's Legal
Costs, estimated at twenty thousand doliars ($20,000).

Borrower shall pay all costs and expenses in connection with the
making of this loan, including, but not limited to, surveys, title
insurance, recording and filings fees, environmental fees, legal fees,
and appraisal fees,

Thank you for this opportunity to present this proposal. Ilook forward to working with
you on this project. If you have any questions, please feel free to call me at (614) 224-8800.

Best regards,

é’%w LO @@&

Brian W, Coate
Vice President

Lancaster Pollard Mortgage Company

LANCASTER mE
RARD WS

TACRDSC T LOWASY




CROWN COURT PROPERTIES, LTD.

CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
AND SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION

December 31, 2013 and 2012
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Wegner CPAs

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT

To the Board of Directars
Crown Court Properties, Ltd.
Mequon, Wisconsin

We have audited the accompanying consolidated financial statements of Crown Court Properties, Ltd., P
which comprise the consolidated statement of financial position as of December 31, 2013, and the T
related consolidated statements of activities and cash flows for the year then ended, and the related

notes to the financial statements.

Management's Responsibllity for the Financial Statements

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these consolidated financial
statements in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of =
America; this includes the design, implementation, and: maintenance of internal control relevant to the i
preparation and fair presentation of consolidated financial statements that are free from material

misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

Auditor's Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these consolidated financial statements based on our
audlt. We conducted our audit in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United
States of America. Those standards require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable
assurance about whether the consolidated financial statements are free from rnaterial misstatement.

An audit involves performing procedures to abtain audit evidence about the amounts and disclosures in

thie consolidated financial statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditor's judgment,

including the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the consolidated financlaf statements,

whether due to fraud or error. In making those. risk assessments, the auditor considers internal control

relevant to the entity’s preparation and fair presentation of the consolidated financial statements in

order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of _
expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the entity’s internal control. Accordingly, we express no

such opinion. An audit also inciudes evaluating the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the =
reasonableness of significant accounting estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the
overall presentation of the consolidated financial statements. '

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained Is sufficient and appropriate to providé a basis for
our qualified audit opinion.

Basls for Qualified Opinion

As more fully described in Note 14 to the consolidated financial statements, the Organization reports
investments in certain limited partnerships that the Organization has determined are variable Interest
entities and in which the Organization holds a variable interest and is the primary beneficiary at cost. In
our opinion, the Organization's consolidated financial statements should include the accounts of these
limited partnerships to conform with accounting principles generally accepted In the United States of
America. If the Organization's consolidated financial statements included the accounts of these limited
partnerships, total assets and total liabilittes would be Increased by $33,777,077 and $13,337,059,
respectively, as of December 31, 2013, and revenues and expenses would be increased by $3,722,247

and $4,664,898, respectively, for the year then ended.

Janesville Office: Baraboo Office: Pewaukee Office: Madison Office: www.wegnercpas.com
3000 Milton Avenue 123 Second Street W239 N3490 Pewaukee Road 2110 Luann Lane info@wegnercpas.com
Suite 200 Madison, WI 53713 (884) 204-7665

Suite 107 P.O. Box 150

P.O. Box 2260 Baraboo, Wi 539213 Pewaukee, WI 53072 P: (608) 274-4020 )

Janesviile, W! 53547 P: (608} 356-3966 P: (262) 522-7555 F: (608} 274.0775 :
P: (608) 756-4020 F: (608) 356-2966 F: (262) 522-7550



Qualified Opinion

in our opinion, except for the effects on the 2013 consolidated financial statements of the matter
described in the Basis for Qualified Opinion paragraph, the 2013 consolidated financial statements
referred fo in the first paragraph present fairly, in all material respects, the financial position of Crown
Court Properties, Ltd. as of December 31, 2013, and the changes in its net assets and its cash flows for
the year then ended in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of
America.

Prior Pariod Financial Statements

The consolidated financial statements of Crown Court Properties, Ltd. as of December 31, 2012, were
audiled by other auditors whose opinion dated May 15, 2013, on those statements was qualified because
of the departure from generally accepted accounting principles described in the Basis for Qualified
Opinion paragraph.

Report on Supplementary Information

_ Our audit was conducted for the purpose of forming an opinion on the consolidated financial statements

as a whole. The 2013 parent only schedules of financial position and activities are presented for purposes
of additional analysis and are not a required part of the consolidated financial statements. Such
information is the responsibility of management and was derived from and relates directly to the
underlying accounting and other records used to prepare the consolidated financial statements. The
information has been subjected to the auditing procedures applied in the audit of the consolidated
financial statements and certain additional procedures, including comparing and reconciling such
information directly to the underlying accounting and other records used to prepare the consolidated
financial statements or to the consolidated financial statements themselves, and other additional
procedures in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America. In
our opinion, except for the effects on the parent only schedules of financial position and activities of the
qualified opinion on the consolidated financial statements described in the Basis for Qualified Opinion
paragraph, the information is fairly stated in all material respects in refation to the consolidated financial
statements as a whole. The 2012 parent only schedules of financial position and activities were subjected
to the auditing procedures applied in the 2012 audit of the consolidated financial statements by other
auditors, whose report on such information stated that, except for the effects on the parent only schedules
of financial position and activities of the qualified opinion on the consolidated financial statements
described in the Basis for Qualified Qpinion paragraph, it was fairly stated in all material respects in
relation to the 2012 consolidated financial statements as a whole.

\r\\e%m/( ClAs, L.LP

Wegner CPAs, LLP
Pewaukee, Wisconsin
June 27, 2014



CROWN COURT PROPERTIES, LTD.
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF FINANCIAL POSITION
December 31, 2013 and 2012

2013 2012
ASSETS
CURRENT ASSETS
Cash . $ 843,615 $ 668,987
Accounts receivable 143,275 2,834
Prepaid expenses - 8,419
Current portion of notes receivable 113,872 364,425
Current portion of development fee receivable, related parly 262,188 498,314
Other current assets - 434
Total current assets 1,362,950 1,533,413
RESTRICTED FUNDS AND DEPOSITS HELD IN TRUST
Tenant security deposits 36,355 36,705
Replacement reserve 685,441 610,476
Real estate tax escrow 36,558 36,542
Operating deficit reserve 309,294 306,261
Development cost escrow 126,859 125,621
Earnest money 60,000 50,000
Total restricted funds and deposits held in frust 1,254,507 1,165,605
PROPERTY AND EQUIPMENT
Land 289,694 289,694
Land improvements 297,091 297,001
Buildings and improvements 7,844,567 7,844,567
Furniture and equipment 703,180 692,490
Property and equipment 9,134,632 9,123,842
Less accumulated depreciation 1,396,044 994,581
Property and equipment - net 7,738,488 8,129,261
OTHER ASSETS
Development fee receivable, related party less current portion 388,711 987,883
Due from related parties 494,579 536,675
Investments in limited partnerships 195,991 195,991
Loan costs - net 11,897 14,438
Predevelopment costs 656,737 6,990
Notes receivable less current portion 23,600 3,700 _
Total other assets 1,180,815 1,745,677
Total assets $ 11,536,460 $ 12,673,856

See accompanying notes.



LIABILITIES AND NET ASSETS
CURRENT LIABILITIES
Accounts payable
Accrued expenses
Accrued payroll
Accrued interest
Prepaid tenant rent
Deferred revenue
Current portion of deferred exchange grant revenue
Current portion of notes payable
Accrued management fees
Tenant security deposits

Total current liabllities
LONG-TERM LIABILITIES
Notes payable less current portion
Deferred exchange grant revenue, less current portion
Total long-term liabilities
Total liabilities

NET ASSETS
Unrestricted

Total llabllities and net assets

$ 21200 $ 28,174
9,983 © 33,885

4,204 3,437

6,665 6.863

2,960 1,780

14,418 7,168
265,474 265,474
39,431 37,681

4,232 4372

36,287 36,656
404,844 426,489
3,224,052 3,262,527
6,184,309 6,449,783
9,408,361 9,712,310
9,813,205 10,137,799
1,723,255 2,436,057

$ 11,538,460  $ 12,573,856

I



CROWN COURT PROPERTIES, LTD.
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF ACTIVITIES
Years ended December 31, 2013 and 2012

2013 2012
UNRESTRICTED NET ASSETS
REVENUE
Net rental revenue $ 566,745 $ 580,730
Development fees - 774,938
{nstaliment sale income - 296,455
Administrative fees 164,701 159,031
Exchange grant revenue 265,474 265474
Interest expense subsidy 165,403 164,750
Relocation revenue 951 275,684
Interest income 25,764 31,018
Other income 20,344 11,460
Total revenue 1,209,382 2,559,440
EXPENSES
Personnel 141,775 105,232
Utllities ‘ 76,670 76,511
Operating and maintenance 120,651 128,389
Taxes and insurance 37,219 74,980
Office expenses 226,261 255,767
Donations 617,104 757,448
Interest expense 246,936 248,798
Professional fees 17,479 15,475
Service fees 4,500 17,453
Relocation expenses 512 237,964
Depreciation 402,938 400,914
. Amortization 2,641 2,541
Abandoned project costs 27,598 27,500
Cost of sales - 296,455
Loss on disposal of property - 6,649
Total expenses 1,922,184 2,652,076
Change in net assets (712,802) (92,636)
Net assets - beginning of year 2,436,057 2,528,693
Net assets - end of year $ 1,723,255 $ 2,436,067

See accompanying notes.



CROWN COURT PROPERTIES, LTD.
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS
Years ended December 31, 2013 and 2012

CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTVITIES
Change in net assets
Adjustments to reconcile change in net assets {o net cash
flows from operating activities
Depreciation
Amortization of loan costs
Exchange grant revenue recognized
Bad debt expense
Loss on disposal of property
(Increase) decrease in assets
Accounts receivable
Prepaid expenses
Development fee receivable, related party
Other current assets
Tenant security deposits
Due from related parties
Increase (decrease) in liabilities
Accounis payable
Accrued expenses
Accrued payrolt
Accrued interest
Prepaid tenant rent
Deferred revenue
Accrued management fees
Tenant security deposits

Net cash flows from operating activities

CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES
Purchases of equipment

Depasits to and interest retained in replacement reserve
Withdrawals from replacement reserve

Deposits to and interest retalned In operating deflcit reserve
Daposits to and interest retained in real estate tax escrow
Withdrawals from real estate tax escrow

Deposits to and interest retained in development cost escrow
Deposits of earnést money '

Payments for predevelopment costs

Collections on notes receivable

Issuance of and interest earned on notes receivable

Net cash flows from Investing actlivities

CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES
Principal payments on notes payable

Change In cash -
.Cash - beginning of year

Cash - end of year

See accompanying notes.

2013, 2012
$ (712,802) (92,636)
402,938 400,914
2,541 2,541
(265,474) (265,474)
. 8,000

. 6,649
(140,441) 46
8,419 9,091
835,298 69,431
434 (434)
350 (131)
41,096 224,377
(6,974) 11,747
(23,902) 19,181
767 -
(208) (208)
1,180 (1,291)
7,250 7,168
(140) (278)
(368) 113
150,864 398,806
(12,166) (51,573)
(78,835) (77,018)
3,870 27
(3,033) (2,693)
(16} (4,693)

- 4678
(1,238) (780)
{10,000) (60,000)
(58,747) -
230,653 103,930
. (296,455)
70,489 (374,577)
(36,725) (34,210)
184,628 {9,981)
658,987 668,968
$ 843,615 % 658,987




CROWN COURT PROPERTIES, LTD.
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
December 31, 2013 and 2012

NOTE 1—NATURE OF BUSINESS AND SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
Nature of Business

Crown Court Properties, Ltd. acquires, develops, maintains, preserves, owns and aperates low
income housing properties. In November 2009, the organization purchased two housing
projects. Fairview Crossing, located in Kiel, Wisconsin and Plymouth, Wisconsin, consists of 64
units of low-income housing. Bayview Terrace, located in Sturgeon Bay, Wisconsin, consists of
36 units of low-income housing. Crown Court Properties, Ltd. acts as a developer of affordable
housing properties, primarily focusing on acquisition and rehabilitation projects.

Fairview Crossing and Bayview Terrace (the Partnerships) receive long-term financing provided
under Section 515 of the Housing Act of 1949. The Partnerships have entered into rental
assistance agreements with the Rural Housing Service (RHS), a service of the United States
Department of Agriculture Rural Development (RD), whereby rentals and operating methods are
prescribed.

Fairview Crossing and Bayview Terrace have received exchange grants from the Wisconsin
Housing and Economic Development Authorily in accordance with Section 1602 of the
American Recovery and Reinvestment Act of 2009, The grants are in lieu of federal low-income
housing tax credits under Section 42 of the Internal Revenue Code of 1986 (the Code), as
amended. This code section places various restrictions upon the rental of the housing units,
including the gross income of the occupants and the monthly rental rate of each unit. It is the
intention of the organization to lease all housing units in accordance with Section 42 of the

Code.
Principles of Consolidation

The consolidated financial statements include the accounts of Crown Court Properties, Ltd, and
its whally-owned subsidiaries: Crown Court Terrace Heights, LLC; Crown Court Bay Hill, LLG;
Crown Court Northwoods, LLC; Crown Court Camilla, LLC; Bayview Terrace Apartment
Associates Limited Partnership; Crown Court Flagship, LLC;. Grown Court Jefferson, LLC;
Fairview Crossing Apartment Associates Limited Partnership; and Crown Court Ranch Road,
LLC. The consolidated financial statements also include the accounts of Willow Helghts GP, NFP
(of which the QOrganization is a 51% member) and Crown Court Wilkinson Manor, LLC (of which
the Organization is a 90% member). These entities are the managing members or sole members
of entities that operate rental properties. All material inlra-entity transactions have been

eliminated.
Basis of Presentation

The Organization reports information regarding its financial position and activities according to
three classes of net assets: unrestricted net assets, temporarily restricted net assets, and

permanently restricted net assets.

Accounts Receivable

The Organization considers all accourits receivable to be fully collectible and, accordingly, no
allowance for doubtful accounts has been established. If amounts become uncollectible, they will
be charged to operations when that determination is made.



CROWN COURT PROPERTIES, LTD.
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
December 31, 2013 and 2012

NOTE 1—NATURE OF BUSINESS AND SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

Property and Equipment

Property and equipment are stated at cost. Depreciation is provided using the straight-line
method over the following estimated useful lives:

Years
Land improvements 15
Buildings and improvements 15 - 40
Furniture and equipment 3-10

Investments

The Organization has ownership Interests in various limited partnerships which are reported using
the cost method of accounting. Under the cost methed, the investments are recorded at the price
pald. Any distributions received from the investments are recorded as incoma in the consolidated

statements of activities.

Loan Costs

Loan costs consist of financing costs of $21,080 which have been capitalized and amortized over
the related debt term using the straight-line method. Accumulated amortization of these costs is
$9,183 and $6,642 at December 31, 2013 and 2012.

Predevelopment Costs

Predevelopment costs are application, consulting, legal, architectural and engineering fees
incurred by the Organization in the predevelopment and due diligence stages of the acquisition of
a property. The Organization capitalizes these costs if it is probable that the property will be
acquired. If it is unlikely that the property will be acquired, the Organization expenses the costs in
the period that this is determined. At the time of the acquisition of the property, the new company
reimburses the Organization for these predevelopment costs.

Rental Revenue

Rental revenue is reported in the statements of activities net of rental concessions.

Income Tax Status

Crown Court Properties, Ltd. is exempt from federal income tax under Section §01(c)(3) of the
Internal Revenue Code. The Parnerships are treated as disregarded entities for federal tax
purposes and information pertaining to their finances and operations is reported on Crown Court
Properties, Ltd's federal exempt organization return. The Organization's federal exempt
organization returns are subject to examination by the Internal Revenue Service, generally for
three years after they are filed. With few exceptions, the Organization is no longer subject to such
examinations for tax years before 2010.



CROWN COURT PROPERTIES, LTD.
NOTES TO CONSCLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
December 31, 2013 and 2012

NOTE 1—SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Estimates

The preparation of consolidated financial statements requires management to make estimates
and assumptions that affect the reported amounts of assets and liabilities and disclosure of
contingent assets and liabilities at the date of the consolidated financial statements and the
reported amounts of revenues and expenses during the reporting period. Actual results could
differ from those estimates.

Date of Management's Review

Management has evaluated subsequént events through June 27, 2014, the date which the
consolidated financial statements were available to be issued.

Reclassifications

Certain accounts in the prior year consolidated financial statements have been reclassified for
comparative purposes to conform to the presentation in the current year consolidated financial
statements.

NOTE 2—RESTRICTED FUNDS AND DEPOSITS HELD [N TRUST

Tenant Security Deposits

Tenant security deposits are maintained in interest bearing savings accounts separate from the
operating accounts of the Organization. Withdrawals are restricted to reimbursements of tenant
security deposits and assessments for damages,

Replacement Reserve

RD requires the Partnerships to make annual deposits totaling $54,369 into a replacement
reserve account. The required annual deposit amount for Fairview Crossing ($37,869) Increases
by 2.6% each year. Funds are required to be held and administered by RD and all withdrawals
require the authorization of RD. Use of the funds is restricted to major repair, capital expenditures

and replacement of capital items in the project.

Real Estate Escrow

RD requires the Partnerships to make monthly escrow payments to accumulate reserves for real
estate taxes and insurance. Fairview Crossing is exempt from real estate taxes and therefore no

deposits were made into its reserve account during 2013.

Operating Deficit Reserve

Pursuant to the WHEDA Tax Credit Exchange Program Subaward Agreement, an operating
deficit reserve in the amount of $109,000 was required to be funded by each Partnership.
Withdrawals from the operating deficit reserve require approval and authorization from WHEDA,



CROWN COURT PROPERTIES, LTD,
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

December 31, 2013 and 2012

NOTE 2—RESTRICTED FUNDS AND DEPOSITS HELD IN TRUST (continued)

Development Cost Reserve

Pursuant to the WHEDA Tax Credit Exchange Program Subaward Agreement, 10% of Bayview ' -
Terrace's development fee was deposited by WHEDA into a third-party account, the development

cost reserve, and will be release in November 2019.

Earnest Money

At times the Organization is required to fund earnest money held with a trust company for new

developments in the preliminary stages.

NOTE 3—INVESTMENTS IN LIMITED PARTNERSHIPS

Investments in limited partnerships consist of the following at December 31:

Bay Hill Apartment Agsoclates, LP

Park Hill Apartment Associates, LP
Terrace Heights Apartment Associates, LP
Wilkinson Manor Apartment Associates, LP

Investments in limited partnerships

NOTE 4—NOTES RECEIVABLE

Notes receivable at December 31 consisted of the following:

Unsscured note receivable in the amount

of $100,000, and bearing interest at 3%. Unpaid
interest is compounded and added to the
oufstanding balance.

Two non-interest bearing notes receivable
totaling $70,000 and secured by mortgages on
the related properties. Due on demand.

Land contract in the amount of $300,000,

bearing interest at 5% and secured by a mortgage
on the related properties. Repaid in April 2013.

10

2013 2012
$ 195184  $ 195184
100 100
607 607
100 100
$ 195991 § 195991
2013 2012 -
$ 100272 $ 100272
33,600 33,500
. 230,653
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CROWN COURT PROPERTIES, LTD.
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
December 31, 2013 and 2012

NOTE 4—NOTES RECEIVABLE (continued)

Unsecured non-interest bearing note receivable

in the amount of $3,700. Due on demand. 3,700 3,700
Notes recsivable 137,472 368,125
Less current portion of notes receivable 113,872 364,425
Notes receivable, less current portion $ 23,600 $ 3,700

NOTE 6—DUE FROM RELATED PARTIES

The Organization has amounts due from limited partnerships in which it has ownership of
$448,120 and $494,335 as of Dacember 31, 2013 and 2012. The outstanding amounts accrue
interest at the prime rate plus 2% (effective rate of 6.25% at December 31, 2013 and 2012),
which is determined at the end of the preceding calendar month. Accrued interest was $1,114
and $1,191 as of December 31, 2013 and 2012 and is included in due from related parties on the

consolidated statements of financial position.

The Organization has additional amounts due from limited partnerships in which it has partial
ownership of $46,452 and $42,240 as of December 31, 2013 and 2012. These amounts due do
not accrue interest and are due on demand. The receivables will be received by the Organization
in accordance with the terms specified in the respective partnership agreements, which are
subject to cash flow availability and other specified events. Accordingly, the related party
receivable is classified as a non-current asset of the Organization.

NOTE 6—DEVELOPMENT FEES

The Organization, through interests in related limited partnerships, has earned development fees
from its participation in the rehabilitation of various fow-income housing units. There were no
development fees earned in 2013. Development fees eamned were $774,938 for 2012. At
December 31, 2013 and 2012, $650,899 and $1,486,197 of the earned development fess were

unpald.

The Organization expects to collect $262,188 through equity and debt draws in 2014, and has
therefore classified this portion as a current asset. The remaining fees will be paid to the
Organization in accordance with the terms specified in the respective partnership agreements,
which are subject to cash flow availability and other specified events. Accordingly, this portion of
the development fee recsivable is classified as a non-current asset.

NOTE 7—ADMINISTRATIVE FEES

The Organization earned partnership administrative fees, partnership management fees,
acquisition fees, and insurance administrative fees from related parties. Payment of certain fees
is subject to the cash flow restrictions defined in the partnership agreements of the related
parties. Unpaid related party fees earned accrue into subsequent years. Related party fees
earned for 2013 and 2012 were $164,701 and $159,031. These fees are included in
administrative fees on the consolidated statements of activities.

11



~ CROWN COURT PROPERTIES, LTD.
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
December 31, 2013 and 2012

NOTE 8—DEFERRED EXCHANGE GRANT REVENUE

Bayview Terrace was awarded and recelved $2,836,711 of tax credit exchange grant proceeds in
connection with the rehabilitation of the project. Bayview Terrace recognized $103,153 of revenue
from the exchange grant each year for 2013 and 2012.

Fairview Crossing was awarded and received $4,463,831 of tax credit exchange grant proceeds
in connection with the rehabilitation of the project. Fairview Crossing recognized $162,321 of
revenue from the exchange grant each year for 2013 and 2012,

NOTE 9—MANAGEMENT FEES

The Organization is under contract to pay a management fee based on RD’s approved per unit
per month fee for the Partnerships. Management fees incurred under these agreements were
$52,266 and $52,871 for 2013 and 2012,

NOTE 10—OPERATING LEASES

During 2012, the Organization leased office space on a month to month basis. The lease was
terminated on July 28, 2012. Rent paid for the 2012 was $12,694.

The Organization leases two vehicles under operating lease agreements. The lease terms are 36
and 60 months ending in October and November 2015. The leases require combined monthly
payments of $1,028, Lease expense for 2013 and 2012 was $8,250 and $10,988. Future
minimum lease payments required are $12,336 and $11,007 for 2014 and 2015.

NOTE 11—CONCENTRATIONS

Operations

The Organization's operations are concentrated in the multifamily real estate market. In addition,
the Partnerships operate in a heavily regulated environment. The operations of the Partnerships
are subject to the administrative directives, rules and regulations of federal, state and local
regulatory agencies. Such administrative directives, rules and regulations are subject to change
by any of these authorities with little notice.

Credit Risk

The Organization maintains cash balances at several financial institutions located in Wisconsin.
Accounts at each institution are insured by the Federal Deposit Insurance Corporation up to
$250,000. At December 31, 2013, the -Organization’s uninsured cash balances total

approximately $324,000.
NOTE 42--CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS

Supplemental disclosures to the consolidated statements of cash flows are as follows:

Cash payments for interest $ 247,144 $ 249,006

12



CROWN COURT PROPERTIES, LTD.
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
December 31, 2013 and 2012

NOTE 13—FUNCTIONAL EXPENSES

Expenses by function for the year ended December 31, 2013 were as follows:

2013 2012
Program services $ 1648695 = § 2355782
Management and general 273,489 206,294
Total expenses $ 1,922,184 $ 2,652,076

NOTE 14—COMMITMENTS AND CONTINGENCIES
Guarantees

At December 31, 2013, the Organization had a guaranty on a mortgage note for an independent
third party totaling $243,000. The guarantee was secured by a mortgage on the real property. On
May 28, 2014, the loan was paid In full and the continuing guaranly was cancelled.

As part of the exchange grant awarded to Bayview Terrace, WHEDA required the organization to
enter into a guaranty agreement to cover all operating deficits and debt service payments. The
guaranty expires on November 19, 2019.

Land Use Restriction

The Organization has signed land use restriction agreements with WHEDA as a condition to
receiving an allocation of low-income housing tax credits and exchange funds from WHEDA.
Under these agreements, the partnership must continuously comply with Section 42 and other
applicable sections of the Internal Revenue Code (IRC). The agreements place occupancy
restrictions on rents and the minimum percent of units which shall be occupied by individuals or
families whose income meets the requirements set under IRC Section 42. If the organization fails
to comply with these agreements or with the IRC, it may be ineligible for low-income housing tax
credits and the partners may be required to recapture a portion of the tax credits previously
claimed on their income tax returns. If the Organization fails to comply with the terms of its
subaward agreements, it may be obhgated to repay proceeds received from the tax credit
exchange program subaward.

Varlable Interest Entities (VIE)

Generally accepted accounting principles require the consolidation of certain “variable interest
entities.” The standard requires both qualitative and quantitative analysis to determine the primary
beneficiary of a VIE, requires continuous assessments of whether an enterprise is the primary
beneficiary of a VIE, enhances disclosures about an enterprise’s involvement with a VIE, and
amends certain criteria for determining whether an entity 1s a VIE. Under generally accepted
accounting principles, a VIE must be consolidated if the enterprise has both (a} the power to
direct the activities of the VIE that most significantly impact the entity's economic performance
and (b) the obligation to absorb losses or the right to receive benefits from the VIE that could
potentially be significant to the VIE.

13



CROWN COURT PROPERTIES, LTD.
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
December 31, 2013 and 2012

NOTE 14— COMMITMENTS AND CONTINGENGIES (continued)

The Organization is the sole member of the general partner of several limited liability companies
where the Organization was determined to be the primary beneficiary. These limited liability
companies were identified as variable interest entities that are required to be consolidated with
the Organization under these rules. However, these financial statements do not consolidate these
variable interest entities as required by generally accepted accounting principles.

During 2013 and 2012, there were no changes in the Organization's primary beneficiary
determinations related to the real estate entities. The Organization has accounted for the VIEs
using the cost method of accountlng. The Organization has excluded the activities of the following
VIEs from its consolidated financial statements:

Bay Hill Apartments Associates, LP

Flagship Apartment Associates, LP

Northwoods Crown Court Apartment Associates, LP
Park Hill Apartment Associates, LP

Jefferson Apartment Associates, LP

Willow Heights Apartment Associates, LP

Wilkinsorn Manor Apartment Associates, LP

Terrace Heights Apariments Associates, LP

Effect on the Consolidated Statements of Financlal Position

Consolidating the VIEs at December 31, 2013 and 2012 would have increased assels by
$33,777,077 and $45,611,885 for total assets of $46,366,261 and $68,085,741, increased
liabilittes by $13,337,059 and $24,807,123 for total liabilities of $23,273,685 and $34,944,922,
and increased unrestricted net assets by $20,440,018 and $20,704,762 for total unrestricted net
assets of $23,092,576 and $23,140,819.

Effect on the Cansolldated Statements of Activities

Consolidating the VIEs for the years ended December 31, 2013 and 2012 would have increased
revenues by $3,722,247 and $4,278,030 for total revenues of $4,946,729 and $6,844,762,
increased expenses by $4,664,898 and $5,287,763 for total expenses of $6,638,862 and
$7,947,131, and decreased change in unrestricted net assets by {$942,661) and ($1,009,733) for
total change in unrestricted net assets of ($1,692,133) and ($1,102,369).

14



CROWN COURT PROPERTIES, LTD.
SCHEDULES OF FINANCIAL POSITION—PARENT ONLY
December 31, 2013 and 2012

16

2013 2012
ASSETS
CURRENT ASSETS
Cash E $ 753411 $ 572379
Accounts receivable 143,125 1,134
Prepaid expenses . 8,419
Current portion of notes receivable 113,872 364,425
Current portion of development fee receivable, related party 262,188 498,314
Other current assets : - 434
Total current assets 1,272,596 1,445,105
RESTRICTED DEPOSITS AND FUNDED RESERVES
Earnest money 60,000 50,000
Property and equipment - net 248,950 254,798
OTHER ASSETS
Development fee receivable, related party less current portion 510,148 1,109,320
Due from related parties 494 579 536,575
Investments in limited partnerships 206,991 206,991
Predevelepment costs 65,737 6,990
Notes receivable less current portion 23,600 3,700
Total other assets 1,301,055 1,863,576
Total assets $ 2,882,601 $ 3613479
LIABILITIES AND NET ASSETS
CURRENT LIABILITIES
Accounts payable $ 12,637 $ 16,263
Accrued expenses 3,935 27,837
Accrued payroll 4,204 3,437
Deferred revenue 16,402 8,420
Total liabilities 37,178 55,957
. NET ASSETS
Unrestricted 2,845,423 3,657,622
Total liabilities and net assets $ 2,882,601 $ 3,613,479




CROWN COURT PROPERTIES, LTD.
SCHEDULES OF ACTIVITIES—PARENT ONLY
Years ended December 31, 2013 and 2012

UNRESTRICTED NET ASSETS

REVENUE
Net rental revenue
Development fees
Instaliment sale income
Administrative fees
Relocation revenus
Interest income
Other income

Total revenue
EXPENSES

Personnel
Utilities

Operating and maintenance

Taxes and insurance
Office expenses
Donations

Professional fees
Relocation expenses
Depreciation
Abandoned project costs
Cost of sales

Loss on disposal of property

Total expenses’

Change in net assets

Net assets - beginning of year

Net assets - end of year

16

2013 2012
$ - 8 9,880
< 774,938

n 206,455

182,157 179,410
951 275,684
18,990 25,878
.9,157 909
211,255 1,663,064
141,775 106,232
4,562 3,849
4,988 21,948
5,327 50,127
08,161 112,114
617,104 757,448
17,479 16,475
512 237,964
5,848 6,022
27,698 27,500

; 296,455

. 6,649

923,354 1,640,783
(712,099) (77,729)
3,667,522 3,636,251
$ 2845423  $ 3,567,522
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CROWN COURT PROPERTIES DEVELOPMENT EXPERIENCE

Organization
Crown Court Properties Ltd. (“CCP”) is a 501(c) 3 organization established in 2000 with a

charitable purpose of preserving affordable housing that is at risk of being eliminated from the
national affordable housing inventory either through conversion to market rate or by physical
deterioration.

Mission Statement
To acquire, rehabilitate and properly maintain affordable housing for low to moderate- income
households.

History and Experience
Crown Court Properties to date has received 10 LIHTC allocations for a total of 646 units. CCP

currently has developed and is General Partner or Owner of a total of 626 units. A smaller 20
unit 2008 award for a new construction project was returned due to challenges in the equity
markets at that time. Our history and current experience in affordable housing currently includes
the following specific activities:

1. Acquired in 2001 Willow Heights Apartments, which is a 64 Unit Elderly Apartment
Building, located in Decatur, Illinois, with Tax Exempt Bonds, and a Section 8 contract,
currently the development is operating ahead of budget and has achieved REAC scores in
excess of 95 during CCP’s ownership, CCP acts as the General Partner in this development
through a separate LL.C formed to own the development. Recently, we successfully secured
financing for rehab through the Illinois Housing Development Authority ERP program (see
below).

2. Acquired in 2003 and rehabbed Bay Hill Apartments, which is a 68 Unit Town House
Complex, located in Sturgeon Bay, Wisconsin; financed under Rural Development and US
Bank loans and a Section 8 contract, valued at $5,900,000. CCP received and sold Tax
Credits to the Enterprise Social Investment Foundation in the amount of $2,525,000.
Extensive rehab was performed at Bay Hill; during this rehab CCP participated in all
scheduled draw meetings and advised on tenant file compliance as well as the complete
tenant relocation process, which was performed on a rolling basis so as not to displace any
tenants or schoolchildren. Particular program difficulties were encountered in the
overlapping and conflicting Rural Development and Tax Credit regulations with respect to

2233 West Mequon Rond, Mequon, WI 53092 ‘Tel 262 242 7705  Fax 2622427711 www.crowncouriproperties,com
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household incomes and compliance. CCP was able in conjunction with management, to
satisfy both the State Housing Finance Agency responsible for the monitoring of the credits
as well as Rural Development who is responsible for compliance with specific Rural
Development income and compliance regulations.

3. Acquired in 2003 and rehabbed Terrace Heights Apartments, which is a 50 Unit Town
House Complex, located in Wausau, Wisconsin with a Section 8 contract, valued at
$4,725,000; financed with a US Bank loan and a Section 8 contract. CCP received and sold
Tax Credits to the Enterprise Social Investment Foundation in the amount of $2,100,000;
extensive rehab was performed at Terrace Heights. Particular program difficulties were
encountered in tax credit syndication and valuation of market rents vs. the Section 8 rents,
which were 200% of FMR. This necessitated an operating reserve be established to fund the
rent differential in the event the section 8 contract would not be renewed. CCP assisted in
this valuation process along with management and its project auditors Virchow Krause.

4. Acquired in 2005 and rehabbed, Northwoods Apartments, which is a 72 Unit Apartment
Complex, located in a qualified census tract in Milwaukee, Wisconsin, with a Section 8
contract. This development is valued at $6,000,000 and has received a reservation from
WHEDA for the allocation of tax credits. Extensive rehab began in March of 2005, A new
building was constructed which included a management office, laundry facility and
computer-learning center. There were extensive landscape improvements, including complete
replacement of all asphalt parking. One building had the entire 3-story front entryway
stairwell removed and reconfigured in order to make that entrance fully handicapped-
accessible. During the rehab CCP participated in all scheduled draw meetings and advised
on file compliance as well as the tenant relocation during the renovation. The work was
performed on a rolling basis in order to avoid permanent displacement of any tenants and to
minimize disruption to resident’s daily lives, e.g. schoolchildren,

5. Acquired through HUD foreclosure auction in 2005, Camilla Court Apartments, a 62 unit
Section 8 elderly property in Milwaukee, Wisconsin, Camilla Court was a troubled property
with numerous physical challenges, the result of a series of missteps by previous ownetship
and management, which had left the property with serious fiscal issues and occupancy
problems,

In February of 2006 an application for 9% credits was submitted under the preservation

category and CCP was awarded the credits. Receipt of this allocation allowed for Camilla
Court’s complete renovation. CCP has brought sustainability to the project which impacts the

2233 West Mequon Road, Mequon, WI 53092 Tel 2622427705 Fax 2622427711 www.crowncouripropertics.com
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neighborhood, by securing $350,000 in grants from the Federal Home Looan Bank of Chicago
and the Helen Bader Foundation and most importantly, $5,347,000 in tax-credit equity.

6. In fall of 2007 CCP acquired and commenced rehab on Flagship Apartments, consisting of
70 units of scattered site apartments, located in Kewaskum and Green Lake, Wisconsin, with
a project based Section 8 contract and with WHEDA’s allocation of tax credits. Extensive
rehab began in November of 2007.

Financing included construction and permanent loans from US Bank and $3,818,027 in tax-
credit equity.

7. In April of 2008 CCP received 2 additional 9% tax credit allocations for the Fairview
Crossings Project located in Kicl and Plymouth, Wisconsin and for the Bayview Terrace
Project located in Sturgeon Bay, Wisconsin. These projects combined total 100 units of
acquisition rehab and an annual LIHTC reservation of $550,000 being added to the CCP
portfolio. CCP has returned the LIHTC and received funding through the 1602 credit
exchange program. These 2 projects were closed in November of 2009 using the Credit
Exchange Program. These were the first projects in the State of Wisconsin to close with
WHEDA under this new program.

8. In September of 2008 CCP received a 9% LIHTC allocation for Park Hill Townhomes, a
new construction of 20 townhome and duplex units adjacent to Park Hill Senior Apartments.
The new units were intended serve families with 3 bedrooms 1.5 baths, each unit with its
own private garage and entrance. This allocation was returned to the Authority due to the
drastic changes in the equity and real estate markets at the end of 2008.

9. In June of 2009 CCP received a 9% tax credit allocation for the Jefferson Apartments
project located in Jefferson, Wisconsin. This project combines two RD properties for a total
of 64 units of acquisition rehab and an annual LIHTC reservation of $607,000 being added
to the CCP portfolio. CCP successfully closed this project with an investor and WHEDA'’s
TCAP gap funding program dollars.

10. In February of 2010 CCP restructured the Willow Heights project in Decatur, IL. This
transaction utilized multiple layers of financing, including; $2,560,000 of tax exempt bond
financing, placed with US Bank, $1,400,000 of TCAP loan funds, $2,213,000 of 1602 grant
funds, $413,250 of IL State Donation tax credit equity from US Bank and private investor
equity. CCP worked diligently with all levels of IHDA staff to successfully conclude this
complex transaction.
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11. In April of 2011 CCP received a 9% tax credit allocation for the Wilkinson Manor
Project located in Oconomowoc, Wisconsin, This project combines 76 units of acquisition
rehab and an annual LIHTC reservation of $573,582 being added to the CCP portfolio. 20
new garages will be added to the development at the senior site. CCP has brought
sustainability to the project which impacts the neighborhood, by securing $350,000 in Home
funds through Waukesha County and most importantly, $5,333,779 in tax-credit equity,

12, In April 2014 CCP received a 9% tax credit allocation for the purchase and rehabilitation
of Whitewater Woods, a 60-unit family apartment complex. This project closed on October
31, 2014, partnering with WHEDA and USDA Rural Development. The planned rehab will
begin in January 2015,

Principals and Partnerships

L. Principals
Crown Court Properties operation is led by Rabbi Motty Spalter and Menachem Rapoport.

Motty and Menachem handle the daily responsibilities of managing the organization, and
over the last thirteen years, have achieved a tremendous amount in the affordable housing
industry. They are personally involved in prospecting for project development, new project
feasibility, purchase price assessment, tax credit application process, negotiations with
potential syndicates, mortgage applications, rehab planning, construction details, site visits,
management issues, rent up, monthly audit review, and tenant relations.

[1. Partnerships

1. Property Managers
CCP generally contracts with ACC Management Group which has a depth of experience in
the marketplace as well as a stellar reputation earned by their in depth knowledge of
affordable housing management practices and compliance policies.

CCP has successfully accomplished the acquisition, rehabilitation, and management of its
affordable housing portfolio working primarily with ACC Management Group and Stier
Construction Inc, These entities combined have extensive experience in the development,
construction, rehabilitation, management and compliance of all programmatic types of
affordable housing including Section 8, Rural Developiment and the Section 42 tax credit
program,
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2. Lenders and Investors
Crown Court Properties has developed many solid business relationships over the last six
years with the following companies: Our primary loan provider US Bank, pre-development
lenders; LISC and FCI, Equity investors; ESIC, Paramount, Great Lakes Capital Fund and
Boston Capital. Letter of credit providers; Associated Bank, US Bank N.A. and US Bank
CDC. We have also received loans/grant funding from the Federal Home Loan Bank of
Chicago via their AHP program and HOME funds,

3. Directors and Advisory Board
Additionally CCP has on its Board several directors with extensive business acumen and/or
programmatic knowledge of the RD, Section 8 and Section 42 tax credit programs.
Furthermore and equally important is the CCP Housing Advisoty Board, comprised of
individuals knowledgeable and well known in the affordable housing field. With the
oversight of its Board of Directors and advice from the Housing Advisory Board, CCP is
well equipped to tackle the challenges of preserving affordable housing through its hands on
commitment and its demonstrated ability to acquire, develop, rehab and manage affordable
housing.
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